G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To

The Members of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of IndoStar Home Finance
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022,
its profit/loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant tc our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have ohtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Attention is drawn to Note no. 30(G) of the Statement which describes the impacts of Covid-19
Pandemic on the standalone financial results as also on the business operations of the Company,
assessment thereof by the management of the Company based on its internal, exiernal, and
macro factors, involving tertqin estimation uncertainties.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with IND AS and the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

Brror.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.

Mumbai Office: 'u.u'u’.i.n_d_sur, 6th Floor, Office No-604, CST Road, Kéliﬁa, Santacruz (East), Mumﬁai";—'hﬂﬂl}ﬂé

Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune — 411 038,
Phone: +91 20 6680 7200; Email — audit@gdaca.com. 2




G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants
ﬁ
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider gquantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
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results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The audit of standalone financial results for the year ended March 31,2021 was carried out and
reported by predecessor auditor Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants vide their
unmodified audit report dated June 14, 2021, whose report has been furnished to us by the
management and which has been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit of the statement.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I) As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014,
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not
in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses);

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note no. 5(iil) to the IndAs financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note no. 5(iii) to the IndAs financial statements, no funds have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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vi) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

vii) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For G. D, Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 100515W

=l
Chetan R. Sapre
Partner LT
Membership No: 116952
UDIN :22116952AJAXXF6191
Place :Mumbai
Date : May 16, 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF INDOSTAR HOME FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph | under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date)

i,
a)

b)

d)

e)

b)

a)

b)

c)

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment for the year.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of intangible assets.

The Company has physically verified its fixed assets during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting under clause
3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable.

The company has neither revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) nor intangible
assets or both during the year.

As per the information and explanation provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The Company business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crores rupees, in aggregate, from banks
on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the principal business of the Company
is to give loans and hence clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable.

As per the information and explanations given to us, loans provided by the Company, are
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Company has not made investments or given
any guarantees, security, and advances in the nature of loans.

In respect of the loans/ advances in nature of loan, granted by the company as part of its
business, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated by the Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions,
it is not practicable to furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date of repayment or
receipt and the extent of delay (as suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for the reporting under this clause) in

e
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wi.

wii,

d)

f)

this report, in respect of loans and advances which were not repaid/paid when they are
due or were repaid/paid with a delay, in the normal course of lending business.

Further , except for those instances where there are delays or defaults in repayment of
principal and/or interest as at the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company
has disclosed asset classification/staging of loans in note 30 (F) to the standalone financial
statements in accordance with Indian Accounting (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and
are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

In respect of the loans/ advances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more
than ninety days (including cases classified as non-performing asset (NPA) as per ‘Non -
Banking Financial Company —Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021
(“NHB Master Directions”) as at March 31, 2022 is Rs. 2,224.31 Lakhs, the details of the
same are disclosed in note 30 (F) to the standalone financial statements. In such instances,
in our opinion, reasonable steps have been by the Company for recovery of the overdue
amount of principal and interest.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us, the Company is
in the business of giving loans, hence this clause 3(iii)(e} of the order is not applicable.
According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits or the amounts deemed to be deposit as per the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The maintenance of cost record has not been specified for business activities carried out by
Company. Thus, reporting under Clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of
the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any other
statutory dues, wherever applicable. The provisions relating to duty of excise, duty of
custom, sales tax, value added tax, and service tax are not applicable to the Company.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
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wiil.

Xi.

payable in respect of aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2022 for a period
of more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect

of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause(a) above which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions or income, not
recorded in the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not defaulted in repayments of dues from any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the term loans were applied for
the purpose for which the loans were obtained by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause
3(ix){e) of the order is not applicable.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause
3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination
of records of the Company, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer during the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause
3(x){a) is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination
of records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(b) is not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the company,
by its officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(

J
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b. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no report U/s
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor, predecessor
auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints
have been received during the year by the company.

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii)(a) to 3(xii)(c) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records of the Company, the transactions entered with related parties are in compliance with
provisions of section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such
transactions are disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

xiv.
a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. The reports of the Internal Auditors of the company issued till date for the period under
audit were considered by us.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of records of the Company, the Company during the year has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors covered
under the provisions of sec 192 of the Act and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the
order are not applicable to the Company.

Kvi.
a. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934 (2
of 1934).
b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not conducted
Non-Banking Financial or Home Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

¢. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Hence the clause
3(xvi)(c ) of the order is not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, the group has no Core
Investment Company (CIC). Hence the clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable.

xvii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not incurred cash
losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
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xviii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

KiX.

L+

Wi,

of the recards, the previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year
to comply with the instruction as specified in Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central
Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and
NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021 issued by Reserve Bank of India (the "RBI
Guidelines”) and there were no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of
the BOD and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report and that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing
as at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date.

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in
respect of other than ongoing projects which are required to be transferred to a Fund
specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, within a period of 6 months of the expiry
of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to Sec 135 (5) of the said Act.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in
respect of ongoing project which are required to be transferred to special account in
compliance with the provision under section 135(6) of the said Act.

The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and hence the
provisions of Clause of 3{xxi) of the order is not applicable.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 100515W

\ =

Chetan R. Sapre

Partner

Membership No: 116952
UDIN :22116952AJAXXF6191
Place :Mumbai.

Date :May 16, 2022
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF INDOSTAR HOME FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 1 {f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INDOSTAR HOME
FINANACE PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
Oor error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

/
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Phone: +91 22 3512 3184; Email: chetan.sapre@gdaca.com

Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune — 411 038,
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G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion _

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
of March 21, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAL

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 100515W

Chetan R. Sapre

Partner

Membership No: 116952

UDIN :22116952AJAXXF6191
Place : Mumbai.

Date :May 16, 2022
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Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune — 411 038,
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IndaStar Home hinance Private Limited
CIN: RS9 MHIGIERTC 271587
Balance Sliet as at 31 March 2022
(Cwrrency @ Indias hupees Lakhs)

; Agar HAs at
Particulars Mote
" 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
I. AS5ETS
Financlal assers
.ash and cash equivalents 3 39187 5B5.29
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 4 2070.48 260,28
Loans 5 1,21,587.18 B3,822.39
Investments L3 2.300.12 s00.02
Other hinancial assets 7 2,338.36 2,6R4.48
1,28,698.01 H7832.46
Non-linancial assets
Currerd Lav assets (net) B 258.96 223.50
Peoparety, plant and eqoigmient 10 333.44 171.77
Aszats hobd for sale 11 - 477.4%
Intangible assets 12 207.95 103.99
Other nan-financial assets 13 209.80 225.33
1.010.19 1,202,048
TOTAL ASSETS 1,29,704.20 89,034.53
I UABILITIES AND EQUITY
LEARILITIES
Financhal Habilities
Frade payvables 14
0.05 0.32
(1) total outstanding to micro snterprises and small enterprises
[} bowal putstard:ng dues of creditors other than micro 1,19968 29558
ENRTErSey e vl ORI
Dept securitias
Bor owings 15 74,045.20 B3,984.06
Dher financial labditizs 16 4,257.00 2,6449.56
79,501.50 67,129.92
Noe-financial Batilities
Prowrsinn. 17 689.86 6012
Deterced 1ax hzbdities (net) 8 8075 23572
Qcher nan-financa babllities 12 13422 By.44
ang.E3 A75.42
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7980673 67, 505,44
Equity
Erquizy share Zapatai 19 4500000 20,000.00
COithiar aguily 20 4,901..7 1,529 30
TOTAL EQUNTY 49,901.47 21,528.30
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ECILITY 1,24,708.20 85,034.54

S gecompany‘ng nates fonming part of the financial statements 1 1o 46

tn s of our renort attached
ForG. 0. Apte & Co

Charmarsd Accountants

FlNal DO5N 1 &N

Partrar
0. e, 116957

Pl Mumb
Date: ih May 2022

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Ceputy CED
M- DEOS92 20

Place: Mumbai
Cate: 145 May 2022

r Kumar Talraja
Mo Expcutive: Dieecion
LIM: DETRAZYT

Nidbi Sadani
Campany Secratary [| »



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN; UBS990MH2016FPTC271587

Statement of profit and loss far the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars Mote For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 21 March 2021
Revenue from operations 21
Imterest income 13,551.74 10,731.62
Fees and commission income £E92.41 237.83
Met gain on fair value changas 92.89 92.08
c iti f financial in: syt d at
ain ?n derecognition of financial instruments measured a 273.96 3.156.28
amartised cost category
Tortal revenue from operations 14,461.00 13,217.82
Other ingome 22 21,30 188.93
Total income 14,482.30 13,406.75
Expenses
Finance costs 23 4,933.35 5.65R.05
Impairment on financial instruments 24 612,11 955.10
Employee benefit expenses 25 2,B76.59 1,808.40
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 26 156.55 200.82
Other expenseas 17 1,295.01 917.15
Total axpanses 9,873.61 9,535.52
Profit befare tax 4,608.69 3,867.23
Tax expense:
1. Current tax 28 1,325.00 380.50
2. Deferred tax expense g [147.14) 69160
Total tax expenses 1,177.86 1,072.10
Profit after tax 3,430.83 2,795.13

other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 8.60 .07
- Income tax relating to items that will nat be

i § 0.19
reclassified to profit or loss ) ‘ b
6.43 2.88
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 6,43 2.B8
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,437.26 2,738.01
Earnings per equity share 29
Rasic sarnings per share (Rs.) n.as 1.40
Diluted earnings per share (Hs.) .85 1.40
(Equity Share of face value of Rs. 10 each)
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 46
In terms of our repart attached For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Far G. D. Apte & Co IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN-100515W
f"'

A1
CA CI1>1.HT|L'H.' Sapre i Kumar Talreja

Fartner Deputy CED Mon-Executive Director
M. Ma. 116852 Dz 02089220 DiN: OR7GR257

Nidhi Sadani
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumba
Date: 16 May 2022 Date: 16 May 2022



Indoitar Homé Finance Private Umited

CIN: UBSISIMHZ01GFTCI 5HT

Etatement of Cash Nows Tor the year ended 31 March 2022
ICurrency : bndian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year endied
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash Elw from Operating Activities
Predit beiore tax &, 60869 36T .21
Adjustments for
Interest inceme on financial assers {13,551, M) (10,946,107}
Fimance eodts 4,933.35 5,658,050
Cepreciation and amarhisation expenis 156.55 0082
Imgasmsent on financial instruments E12.11 955.10
Pigwasion for gratuity and compensated absentes 15.01 [D.B8}
Share based payment expenie 3360 24.96
Luss an sabe ol progerty plant and equiprent 005 LR
Impaiment alfvwance on assets held for sabe {117.79) -
Ket gain on linancial imstruments at FVPL [92.89) 19.05)
Dperating Loss before working capital changes [3.383.04) {16400}
Imterest income realised an financial assets 13.146.35 10,713.95
Fimamce costs paid (6.290,04) (6,313,000
Cash generated from operating activities belore working capital changes 3473.27 4,236.95
Adjustments:
(increase)/Decraasa m boans and advances |57,242.53) {9,932.36)
[Intrease)/Decrease mn other financial assets 11404 11,216.1%)
[Increase)Decvease i other non-linanoal assets 1553 [140.33)
Increase/[Mecrease] in lrade payable T03.80 [113.03}
Inereasef[Recrease] in other financial liabaites La19.67 96271
Increase/[ecrease] in other non-financial Kabilithes 32,55 1.56
131.983.67) 16, 200.69)
Cash {used In}/generated from operating actidties {31,503.67) 16, 200.69)
Taxes paid (ret) {1,360.46} (384,211
Net cash [used in)/generated from operating activithes [A) (33,344.13) 6, 584.50)
B Cash fiows from investing sctivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [52.51) f0.B5)
Puichase of intangibie assets 117E.08) [102.88}
Sale of property, plant and egquipment 565 0.30
Sale [ [Puschase] of assets held for sale Ea5.28 =
Procends/|investment] in bank deposits of matunty greater than 3 11,810.20) (26028}
manths {net)
[Acnuisitinn)/Redemption of FVTPL investmends [net) {1.707.21) [407.93)
Netcash [used In)fgenerated from Imarsting activities (8] {3,148.03) {774.24)
€ Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from idsus of equity share capital [98.69) A0&50,00
Procepdd fram borrawings 62,970,23 [34,3 74,92}
Repaymaorts towards borrewangs (26,552,800 - {23.60)
Net cash (immed In)f gererated from financing activiiies (C] 36,318,794 5,261.48
Net Increasef{decrease] In cash and cash equivalents (A + [B) + [T} (ar3.4) (1,094,566}
Cash and Cagh Eguivalents ot the beginning of the year 565.29 1,658,895
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of tha year 15187 565.19
Reconcilintion of cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheel
Cagh on hand 441 10
Balances with banks
=i current Fcoounts 3745 S64.28
Depotits with onginal maturity of less than 3 months d =
Tartal 191.87 565.219

See accompanying ndtes Iorming part of the (mancial statements 1 1o &6

In terms of our repart allached For and on bahal! of the Board of Directors of

For G. D, Apte B o . IndoStandi Finance Private Limited

Chartered Accountants o

FRM-1pOS1SW ::\ ‘CD

CAChetsn B Sapre : sh Kurma Talreln It

Partrer Deputy CEO Non-Executive Director L

M, Mo, 116952 DIN: DBORS2I0 IN: Qe eI X
(el et
Nidhi Sanbani] —
Company Sexrelary ®

Flace: Mumban Mace: Mumbal

Date: 16 May 1022 fate: 16 May 2022




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: UGS990MH2016PTC2 71587

statement of Changes In Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

{a) Equity share capital of face value of Rs. 10/- sach

As at 31st March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting | Changes in Equity Share | Restated balance at the | Changes in Equity | Balance at the end of
period Capital due to priar beginning of the current |Share Capital during|the current reparting
peried errors reporting period the current year period
20,000.00 20,000.00 25,000.00 45,000.00

As at 315t March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the current reperting | Changes in Equity Share | Restated balance at the | Changes in Equity | Balance at the end of
period Capital due to prior beginning of the current  |Share Capital during|the current reparting

period errors reporting period the currant year period
200,000,00 - 20,000.00 - 20,000.00
{b) Other equlty
Reserves and surplus Capital
Particulars Statutory Reserves ufs P e gy contribution from Tatal
25C il Holding Company

{i) Balance at 1 Aprll 2021 851.51 465,88 21191 152930
Profit for the year - 3,430.83 - 3,430.83
Transfer from Retained Earnings 6AG.17 |686.17) - -
Gainfloss on re-measurement of defined benefit 6.43 ) 6d5
plans

Share issue expenses (98.69) {98.69)
Share based payment expense - . 33.60 33.60
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,537.68 3.118.28 245.51 4,901.47
(i} Balance at 1 April 2020 20248 (1,773.10) 126.85 {1,353.67}
Prafit for the year - 2,795.13 2,795.13
Transfer from Retained Earnings 559.03 {559.03) -

Gainfloss on re-measurement of defined benafit 2.88 4 388
plans

Share based payment expense - - £a.96 B4.96
Balance at 31 March 2021 B51.51 46588 21191 1,529.30

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 46

In terms of our report attached
For G. D. Apte & Co
Chartgred Accountants

FRM-J00515W
N

CA Chi ':.':pre
Partner

M. No. 116952

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 16 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Deputy CEQ
DIN: 03085220

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16 May 2022

r Kumar Talreja

Non-Executive Direclor

DIN: 0B768297

w

Nidhi Sadani
Company Secretary




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIM: UBS990MH20IEPTCAT1587

MNotes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
[Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

1

2.2

2.3

aj

Corporate Information

IndaStar Home Finance Private Limired ('the Company’) was incorporated on January 01, 2016 and is domiciled in India, The Company is
whally owned subsidiary of IndoStar Capital Finance Limited. The Company is engaged in houging finance business and registered with
Mational Housing Bank 'NHB') as housing finance Company (HFC) not accepting public deposits, as defined under section 294 of the
Mational Housing Bank Act, 1987.

Basis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

Statement of campliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant accounting standards. Accounting policies have
hesn consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated,

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the management is satisfied that the Company shell be able 1o
continue its business for the foresesable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going cancern
assumption. In making this assessment, the management has considered a wide range of infarmation relating to present and future
conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources. The outbreak of COVID-19 has not affected the
going cancern assumption of the Company.

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheeot and the Statement of Prafit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division 11l ta Schedule
Il tes the Act applicable Far Mon Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as
per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and
statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 11 to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards and the SEBI [Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

An analysis regarding recovery or settierment of assets and liabilities of the Campany as on balance sheet dates, within 12 months after the
reporting date {current) and more than 12 months after the reperting date (non—cu rrent).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance shect, They are only offset and reported net when, in
addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts withoul being contingent on a future event,
the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

< the normal course of business
- the event of default
- the event of insolvency of bankreptey of the Company/ ar its counterparties

Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilitles cen be termed 25 financial instruments.
Financial instruments are recagnised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instruments.

(i) Classification of Financial Instruments
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

I. Financial assets to be measured al fair value through other comprehensive incame

1. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through prafit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company’s business madel for managing
financial assets.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised cost unless it has designated liahilities at fair value through the profit and loss
account or it required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) such as derivative liabilities, Financial liabifities,
other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at FVTPL when they are derivative instruments or the fair value
designation is applied.

Transaction costs directly pertaining to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments are added to or deducted from the initial
measurement amount of the instrument except where the instrument is initially measured as fair value through prafit or loss.



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIM: UBSS90RMHZ01RPTC2 71587

Mates ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
[Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

(I} Azsessment of business model and contractual cash flow characteristics for financial assets

Business model assessment

The Company determines Its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financlal assets to achieve its
business objective. The Company's business model determines whether the cash flows will be generated by collecting contractual cash
flows, selling financial assets or by both.

The Company's business model is assessed at portfolio level and not at instrument level, and is based on observable factors such as:

(i How the perfarmance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reparted to the
entity's key management personnel;

{ii} The risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;

{iii} The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment. The business model
assessment iz based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case’ or 'sirass case’ scenarios into account.

Solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) test

Subsequant to the assessment to the relevant business model of the financial assets, the Company assesses the contractual terms of
‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of
the financial asset. The mast significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the censideration for the time
value of money and credit risk.

(i} Initial measurement of financial instruments
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing
the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value.

(iv) Classification of Financial Instruments as per business model and SPPI test

(a) Loans and Debt instruments at amortised cost

& ‘loan or debt instrument’ 15 measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii) The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

after initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amartized cost is calculated by taking inta account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in interest income in the profit or loss. The losses ansing from impairment are recognized
in the profit or loss.

{b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose ohjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to sole payments of principal and
interest an the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

(c} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Firancial assets at fair value through profit or loss are thase that are either held for trading and have been either designated by
management upon initial recognition or are mandaterily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109, Management only
designates an instrument at FYTPL upon initial recognition when ane of the fallowing criteria are met {such designation is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis):

The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or lesses on them on a different basis.
Financial assets at FYTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes In fair value are recorded in profit and loss.

{d) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After nitial measurement, debt lssued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost s
calculated by taking into account any discount o premium on Issue funds, and costs thal are an integral part of the EIR. A compound
financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date.

(e} Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised In the financial statements {within Provisions) at fair value, being the premium/decmed
premium recelved, Subsegquent to initial recognition, the Company's liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of (i} the
amgunt initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and {ii] the amount of loss
allowance. The premium/deemed premium is recognised in the Star/eméiir'ﬁﬁ'mﬁ': and Loss on a straight line basis over the life of the

. (5



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: UESS90MHZ016PTC2T1587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

b)

(f} Undrawn loan commitments
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company is required to provide a

loan with pre-specified terms to the custamer, Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope of ECL requirements,

(v} Reclassification of financial assets and Habllities
The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in
which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.

{vi} Derecognition of financial assets in the following circumstances

{a) Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognices a financial asset, such as a loan to 2 customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegatiated to the
extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecagnition gain or less, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes,
unless the new loan is deemed to be credit-impaired at the origination date.

If the modificaticn does not result in cash flows that are substantially differant, the modification does not result in derecognition. Based
on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

{b) Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Fimancial assets

A financial asset or a part of financial asset |s derecognised when the rights to recewe cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Company alse derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Campany has transterred the financial asset if, and enly if, cither:
- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flaws from the financial asset; or
- It retaing the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows.

A transfer anly qualifies for derecognitian If either;
- The Campany has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
- The Company has neither transferrad nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bul has transferred control of the

asset

The Company considers cantrol to be transferred If and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety o an
unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without impasing additlonal restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retzined control of the asset, the
asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company's continuing invelvement, in which case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Coempany has retained.

{vii) Derecognition of Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability i replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
madified, such an exchange or modification is teeated a5 a derecognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Write off

The Company writes off a financial azset when there is information indicating that the counterparnty is in severe financial difficcity and
there Is na realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s
recovery procedures, Laking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss,

Fair Value Measurement
On initial recognitian, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value, For subsequent measurement, the Company measures
certain categories of financial nstruments at fair value on sach balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sefl an

asset or paid to transfer a Hability In an orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date,

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Hability takes place either:

i, I the principal markat for the asset or liability, or ,r'{_kd_' g™ ()
i Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous mArkat Far the acsat orfiability



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CiN: UG5920MH2016PTC27 1587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency ; Indian Rupeess Lakhs)

4|

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate econcmic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to ancther market participant that would use the assel in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuatlon technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avallable to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable Inputs.

In arder to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues, as
surnmarised below:

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as fallows,
Level 10 guoted prices in active markets far identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: mputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbeervable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall inta different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The Company recogmses transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred, if any.

Property plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Praperty, Plant and Equipment [PPE) Is recognlsed when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow te the
company and the cost can be measured reliably

Praperty, Plant and Equipment (PPE} are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprizes the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for Its intended use. Borrowing costs relzting to
acquisition of assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate ta
the year till such assets are ready to be put to use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Gaing or lasses arising from derecognition of such assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subseguent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the assels carrying amount or recognized as a eparate asset, as appropriate enly if it is probabde that the
future economic benefits assaciated with the item will flow te the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measurad. The
carrying amaunt of any compenent accounted for os 2 separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repair and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reparting periad in which they are incurred,

Dapreciation
Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method (*SLM'), which reflects the management’s estimate of the useful life of the respective
aysels. The estimated useful life used to provide depreciation are as follows:

. Estimated useful life by I Useful life as prescribed |
Particulars the Company by Schedule 1l of the [
Companies Act 2013
Computers 3 years 3 yuars
Office Equipmaent 5 years § years
Furniture and fixtures b years 10 years
Servers and networks 3 5 yeans f years

Froperty, plant and aqulhf‘nent items indvidually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

Leasehaold fmprovement is amartized gn Straight Line Methed over the lease term, sulject 1o a maximum of 60 months.

Useful ii%e of sscats different from prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act has been estimated by management and suppoarted by technical
asgesgmant.

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss till the diate nf
sale.

The wseful lves and the method of depreciation of propenty, plant and equipment are ¢ reviewed ot each finangial year and and adjusta.d
prospectively, if apprepriate. Changes in the expected uselul Bife are accounted 'fﬁl‘-b’.f chaﬂams the amortisation pericd or methodology,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimares. /
(31 \& ) (5!‘
I|I % a4 | I .||
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intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recagnised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic banefits
that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost,
Follgwing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated ameortisation. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
husiness eombination i€ thair fair value as at the date of acquisition

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised wsing the straight line method over a period of 3 years, which is the management’s estimate of its useful
life. The amortisation period and the amortisation methad are reviewed at least as at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asser is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gans of losses ansing from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference betwean the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expence in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Impairment

{i} Financial Assets

(a) Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles

The Company recards allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, debt financial assets not hald at FVTPL, together with undrawn
loan commitments, in this section all referred to as financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS
109,

For the computation of ECL on the financial instruments, the Company categories its financial instruments as menticned below:

Stage 1: All exposures where thare has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recagnition or that has low credit risk at
the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upen arigination are classified under this stage. The Company classifies all advances
upta 30 days cverdue under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are nat credit impalred are
classified under this stage. Exposures are classified as Stage 2 when the amount is due for more than 30 days but do not exceed 50 days,

Stage 3: All exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have 8 detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred. Exposures where the amount remains due for 90 days or more ane considered as to be stage 3
assels.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default aceurring cver the remaining
life of the financial instrument. The Company undertakes the classification of exposures within the aforesaid stages at borrower level.

(k) Definitlon of Default:

A defaull on a financial asset is when the countarparty fails to make the centractual payments within %0 days of when thay fall due.
accardingly, the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 3, if on the reporting date, it has been 90 days past due, Non-payment an
another obligation of the same customer is also considered as a stage 3.

{c} Calculation of ECL:
ECL is a probability weighted credit losses (i.e. present value of all cash shartfalls) over the expected life of the financial instruments.

Cash shortfalls are the difference betwaen the cash fAlows that the entity is entitled to receive on account of contract and the cash flows
that the enlity expects to recaive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are cutlined befow and the key elements are as follows:

Exposure-At-Default (EAD) : The Exposure at Default is the amount the Company i entitled to receive as on reporting date including
repayments due for principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expecied drawdowns on committed facifities

Probability of Default (PD) : The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default of the expasure over a given tme
harizon. & default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed pariad, if the facility has nol been previously derecagnised and is
still in the portfolio
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Loss Given Default (LGD) : The Loss Given Default 15 an estimate of the loss arising in the caze where a default ccours at a given Lime, Itis
based on the difference between the contractual cach flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including frem the
realisation of any callateral,

The FCL allowance is applied on the financial instruments depending upon the classification of the financial instruments as per the credit
risk involved. ECL allowance is computed on the below mentioned basis:

12-month ECL: 12-manth ECL Is the pertion of Lifetime ECL that represents the ECL thar results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reparting date. 12-month ECL is applied on stage 1 assets. -

Lifetime ECL: Lifetime £CL for credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset in cases of credit impaired laans and in case of
financial instruments where there has been significant increase in credit risk since origination, Lifetime ECL is the expected credit loss
resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Lifetime ECL is applied on stage 2 and stage 3
assels,

The Company cemputes the ECL allowance either on individual basis or an collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying
portfolio of financial instruments.

Significant increase in Credit Risk

The Company menitors all financial assets and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements 1o as5ess
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. if there has been a significant increase in credit risk the
Campany will measure the loss allewance based on lifetime rather than 12-menth ECL.

In assessing whether the credit risk en a financlal instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares
the risk of a default ccourring on the financial instrument at the reparting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with
the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument
was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and farward-looking information that is available without undue cast ar effort,

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change, in absolute terms, in the
Probability of Default will be mare significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument
with a higher PD.

As a back-stop when loan asset not being a loans becomes 30 days past due, the Company considers that a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment madel, Le. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL in respact of
all retail assets,

For the purpose of counting of day past due for the assessment of significant increase in credit risk, the special dispensations to any class
of assets in accordance with COVID19 Regulatory Package notified by the Reserve Bank of india [RBI) has been applied by the company.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset coours when the contractual terme governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or
atherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction of a new covenants or adjustment of existing
covenants of an existing loan may constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows
immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met {e.g. a change to the increase in the
interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).

The Company renegotiates loans ta customers in financial difficulty to maximise callection and minimise the risk of default. A loan
farbearance Is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the eriginal contractual terms,
there s a high risk of default or default has already happened and the horrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The
revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan
{principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flaws due (principal and interest forgivencss) and amendments te
COVENANLS
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When a financial asset is modified the Company assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In accordance with the
Company's policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine if the modified
terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms the Company considers the follawing:

* Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI,

* Change in currency or change of counterparty,

« The extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants.

If this do nat clearly indicate a substantial medification, then:

{a} In the tase where the financial asset is derecognised the oss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of derecognition to
determing the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the
new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance
measured based on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is cansidered to be criginated-credit impaired. This
applies only in the case where the fair value of the new lean Is recognised at a significant discount to its revised par amount because there
remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The Company manitars credit risk of modified financial
assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, such as if the berrower is in past due status under the new terms.

{b)] When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the medification does not result in derecognition, the Company
determines if the financial asset's credit risk has Increased significantly since initial recogrition by comparing:

a the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the ariginal

contractual terms; with

» the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

For financial assets madified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Company's ability to
collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Company's previous experience of similar forbearance action, as well a3 various
behavioural indicators, including the barrowar’s payment performance aganst the modified contractual terme. If the credit risk remaimns
significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition the lass allowanea will continue to be measured at an amount equal to
fifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne laans will generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidenca of the
borrower's improved repayment behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk,

Where 3 modification dost not lead to derecognition the Company calculates the modification galn/loss comparing the gross carmying
amount before and after the modification {excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Company measures ECL for the madified asset, where
the gxpected cash flows arising fram the modified financial asset are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original
asset.

Presentation of ECL allowance in the Balance Sheet
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, loss allowance for ECL s presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the

assets.

(i} Non-financial assets

Intangible assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors, &n impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an individual asset gxceeds ils recoverable amount. The
recaverable amount is the higher of fair value of the asset less cost of its disposal and value in use.

f) Recognition of Income
Revenue generated from the business transactions (other than for those items to which Ind AS 102 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration to be reccived or receivable by the Company. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers putlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers,

The Company recognises revenue fram contracts with customers based on a five step model as set outin Ind 115

Step 1: identify contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: identify performance abligations in the contract

Step 3! Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allncate the transaction price i the performance obligations in the contract L \
Step §5: Recogmse revenue when (or as) the Company satisties a performance obligation j
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{a} Recognition of interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR
15 the rate that cxactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument of, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

The EIR for the amartised cost asset is calculated by taking inte account any discount or premiurn on acquisition, origination fees and
transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are ravised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a
positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest Incame.
The adjustment is subsegquently amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired
assers. When a financial asset becomes credit-impoired and is, therefore, regarded as "Stage 3°, the Company recognised the interest
income by applying the effective interect rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial status of the financial asset
improves and it ne longer remains to be a creditimpaired, the Company revises the application of interast income on such financial asset
to calculating intercst income an a gross basis,

Interest ingome on all trading assets and financial assets mandatarily required to be measured at FVTPL1s recognised as interest income in
the statement of profit or loss.

{b) Origination fees
Originaticn fees. which the Company has received/recovered at time of granting of a loan, is considered as a component for computation
of the effective rate of interast (EIR) for the purpose of computing interest income.

(c} Assignment income

in accordance with Ind AS 108, in case of assignment transactions with complete transfer of risks and rewards, gain arising 00 such
assignment transactions is recorded upfrant in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the corresponding asset is derecognised from the
Balance Sheet immediately upon execution of such transactions. Further the transfer of financial assets qualifies for derecognition in its
entirety, the whole of the interest spread at Its present value {discounted over the life of the asset) is recognised on the date of
derecognition itself as excess interest spread and correspondingly recognised as profit on derecagnition of financial asset.

{d) Securitisation transactions :

i sccordance with ind AS 109, in case of secuntisation transactions, the Company retains substantially all tho risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the company cantinues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a callateralisea
oorrowing fur the praceeds recaived.

(2] Met gein/{loss) on Fair value changes

any differences berwesn the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit ar loss, held by the Company on the
balance sheet date Is recognised as an unrealised gain or loss a5 a gain or expanse raspectively.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FYTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOCH is
recogrised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

Finance Costs
The Company recognises interest expense on the borrowings as per EIR methodology which is calculateo by considering any anciliary coste
incurred and any premium payable an its maturity,

Retirement and ocher employea benefits

(i} Defined Contribution Plan

Frovident Fund

Al the employess of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a definad contribution plan in which both the
emplovee 2nd the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has ne liability for future Provident Fund benefits other
{han its annuat cantribution and recagnises such contributions as an cxpense, when an employee renders the refated service.

{ii} Defined Benefit schemes

(a) Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan pravides for lump sum
payments to employees uoon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated year
rentionee under ‘The Pagment of Gratuity Act, 1972', The Campany accounts for liability of future gratuity benefits based on an externai
actuarial valuation on projected unit credic method carried out for assessing liability as at the reparting date,

G .  | (>
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Met interest recognized in profit ar loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the
net defined benefit lability or asset. The actual retuern on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-
measurement of net defined liahility ar asset through other comprehansive income. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan
assets {excluding amounts included in net interest an the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other comprehensive income (‘OCI') in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent periods.

(b} Compensatad Absences

Compensated absences which are expected Lo vocur within twelve months after the end of the peried in which the employee renders the
related services are provided for based on estimates. Compensated absences which are not expected to ocour within twelve months after
the end of the pericd in which the employee renders the related services are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation 15 done as per projected unit credit method as at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Statement
of profit and loss account and are not deferred.

Share based employee payments

Equity settled share based payments

The stock options granted to employees are measurad at the fair value of the options at the grant date, The fair value of the gplions is
treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting period on a straight line basis. The amount recognised
as expense i cach year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period, the
cumulative discount recognised as expensa in respect of such grant is transferred to the general reserve within equity,

Such rights have been provided to the emplayees an the equity shares of the Indostar Capital Finance Limited, who is holding Company.
Such contribution is credited directly as capital contribution of the Company,

Leases

The determination of whethar an arrangement Is a lease, or contains a lease, is based un the substance of the arrangement and requires
an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the
arrangement conveys a right 1o use the asset,

Company as a lessee

Leazes that do rat transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased itame are
treated as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based
on contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expease in the period inwhich they it is incurred.

Critical accaunting estiryate and Judgement

1. Determination of lease term

Ind AS 116 Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a leass adjusted with any option te extend
or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes assessment on the expected |2ase term on
lease by lease basis and thereby assesses whather it is reasonably cerlain that any opiens to extend or terminate

the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leaseheld improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the underlying to the Campany's
aperations taking inte account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future
piriods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic cirgumstances.

2, Discount Rate :
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific ta the lpase being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases

with similar chavacteristics.

Forelgn currency translation
Functional and presentational currency
The financial statements are presented in INR which is also functional eurrency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a prasent obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that outflow of resourcas wiil
be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Pravisions are not discounted to its present value
and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
halance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. —
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2.4

Taxes

{i} Current tax

Current tax assets and liahilities far the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, er paid to,
the taxation autherities. The tax rates and tax laws used Lo compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current incame tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCH o directly in equity.
tanagement periadically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(i) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temparary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Defarred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the sxtant that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabile that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised defarred tax assets are re
assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised ta the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relaling to items recognised autside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive incame
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offeet if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against currant tax
liahilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted carnings per share in accordance with Ind A5 33 on Carnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the net profit or lass for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Far the purpose of calculating diluted arnings per share, the net profit or lass fer the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing
the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases
loss per share are included.

Contingent Liabllities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will ba eonfirmed by the ocourrgnee or non-
accurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events bevond the contral of the Company or a present obligation that is not recegnised
because it is not probable that an outfow of resources will be reguired to settle the cbligation. A contingent fiability also arises in
axtremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses Its existence in the financial statements,

Segment reporting
The Company i primarlly engaged in the business of financing and accordingly there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS
108 dealing with Operating segment.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the Company makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of incame and expenses of the period, the reported balances of astets and liabilities and
the disclosures relating te contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates Include useful lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets,
allowance for doubtful debrs/advances, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, fair value measurement etc. Difference,

if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period jnwhich the results are known,
W
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Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Mote 3
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash an hand 4432 101
Balances with banks =
in current accounts 387.45 564,28
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
391.87 565.29
MNote 4
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months 2,070.48 260,28
2,070.48 260.28
Mote 5
Loans
At amortized cost
Term Loans 1,23,577.53 85,355.75
Total - Gross 1,23,577.53 85,355.75
Less: impalrment allowance (1,980.35) (1,533.36)
Total - Met 1,21,597.18 £3,822.39
Securad by tangible assets 1,23,577.53 85,355.75
Total - Gross 1,23,577.53 £5,355.75
Less; Impairment allowance (1,580.35) (1,533.36)
Total - Net 1,21,597.18 83,822.39
Loans in India
(a) Public sector s
(B} Othars 1,23,577.53 85,3595.75
Total - Gross 1,23,577.53 85,355.75%
Less: Impairment allowance {1,980.35) [1,533.36)
Total - Net 1,21,597.18 B3,822.39
Loans outside India (b) = ‘
Less: Impairment allowance £
Total - Net [b) = -
Total - Net (a}+{b) 1,21,597.18 §3,522.39
Motes :

{i} The Company does not have any financing activities against collateral of gold jewellery. Hence percentage of outstanding lnans granted against
collateral of gold jewellery to total assets at 31 March 2022 is NIL (31 March 2021: NIL).

{ii] Detailed analysis on year end stage classification of loans and impairment allowance is disclosed in Note 30,

{iil) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of
funds) to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whather recarded In writing or
ntherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manneér whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Compamy {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

The Company has not received any funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or 2ntity, including foreign
entity [“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest i other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or %bgh?r _Khe Funding Rarty ("Ultimate Beneficiarie<™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. o 7




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN; UBS9S0MH2016PTC271587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currancy : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

MNate &

Investments [at fair value through profit or loss)

Investments in Mutual Fund 2,300.12 500.02
2,300.12 500.02

Note ¥

Other financial assets

Security deposit 31.03 18.90

Assignment receivables 2,410.72 2,699.77

Other receivables - 37.12
244175 2,755.79

Less: ECL an assignment receivabla ({103.39) (71.31)
2,338.36 2,684.48

Note &

Current tax assets (net)

Advance tax (net of provision) 258.96 223.50

258.96 223.50

Note 9

Deferred tax assets

Provision tor gratuity 14.23 10.48

Provision for leave encashment 5.43 3.43

Provision an assets held for sale - 32.80

Provision for expected credit loss 4838.31 366.00

Income amortisation 44.12 53.51

Depreciation on PPE and intangible assets 2275 24.33

Lease liabilities 4,58 1.05

Deferred tax liabilities

Assignment income amortisation {606.74) (679.48)
Borrowing cost amortisation (53.42) (37.84)
Deferred tax asset/({liabilities) (net) (80.75) (225.72)




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: UBS990MH2016PTCE F15E7

Maotes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Mate 9
Income Taxes

(a] Movement in deferred tax balances

31 March 2022

Met halance Recognised in Recognised Met deferred tax

1 April 2021 profit or loss in OCI asset/|liability)
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision far pratuity 10.48 5.92 (2.17) 14.23
Impairment allowance on assets held for sale 32.80 {32.80) - -
Provision for compensated absences 3.43 2.00 - .43
Impairment allowance on loans 3166.00 122.31 - 488.31
Income amortisation 53.51 (9.39) - 44.12
Defarred tax liability
Depraciation on PPE and intangible assaets 24.33 (1.58) - 22.75
Assignment income amortisation {679.48) 7274 - {806.74)
Borrowing cost amortisation (37.84) [15.58) - (53.42)
Lease liabilities 1.05 3.53 - 4.58
Deferred tax assets [ (liabilities) {225.72) 147.14 (2.17) {80.75)

Net tax assets (225.72) 147.14 (2.17) (80.75)
{b) Movement in deferred tax balances
31 March 2021

Net halance Recognised in Recognised Net deferred tax

1 April 2020 profit ar lass in OCI asset/(liability)
Daferred Tax Assets
Carried forward losses 454,62 (454.62) - -
Provision for gratuity 6.59 4,08 {0.19) 10.48
[mpairment allowance on assats held for sala 32.89 {0.08) - 32.80
Provision for compensated absences 133 0.10 - 343
Impairment allowance on loans 79.31 286.69 - 366.00
Income amortisation 38.79 14.72 - 53.51
Deferrad tax liability
Depreciation on PPE and intangible assets 19.38 445 - 24.33
Assignment income amortisation (130.64) (548.24) - G73.48]
Borrowing cost amartisation (22.43) [5.41) - (37.24)
Lease liabilities (5.77) 6.82 - 1.05
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 466.07 (691.60) {0.19) (225.72)
Met tax assets 466.07 [691.60) {0.19) (225.72)

Ty
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Indostar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN; LU65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 11
Particulars As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021
Assets held for sale - 607.80
Provision on Assets held for sale - (130.31)
- - 477.49
Note 12
Intangible assets
Particulars Computer Software Total
Cost as at 1 April 2020 190.64 190.64
Additions 102.68 102 .68
Disposals - =
Cost as at 31 March 2021 293.32 293.32
Additions 179.08 179.08
Disposals {0.28) {0.28)
Cost as at 31 March 2022 (A) 472.12 472.12
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2020 111.80 111.80
Amortisation for the year 77.53 77.53
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021 189.33 189.33
Amortisation for the year 75.12 75.12
Disposals (0.28) (0.28)
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2022 (B) 264.17 264.17
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 (A)- (B) 207.95 207.95
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 103.99 i03.29




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CiN: LUESSS0MH2016PTC271587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency ; Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars Asat 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021
MNote 13
Other non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses G7.85 8.93
Advances recoverable in cash or In kind or for value to be received 141.85 21640
{refer footnote below)
209.80 225.33

Footnote: Advances recoverable in cash or In kind or for value to be received includes Rs. NIL
{previous year Rs, 161.30 lakhs) a3 claim receivable towards ex-gratia under GOl scheme.
MNote 14
Trade payables
Dues to Micra, small and medium enterprises 0.05 0.32
Dues to Others 1,1949.65 495.58

1,199.70 495.90
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mare than 3 Years
(i) MSME 0.05 - = - 0.05
(i) Others 1,199.65 - - - 1,1959.65
(i} Disputed dues - MSME - - o - ]
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - -
As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date u_!: payment Total
Less than 1Year | 1-2 Years 2-31Years Mare than 3 Years

(i) MSME 0.32 - 0.32
fil) Others 455,58 - = 435.58
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - = 2
Note 15
Borrowings
At amortised cost
Term loans
Term loans from banks [Refer note {a) below) 24.718.61 £,129.3%
Term loans from MHB (Refer note (b) below) 28,313.20 18,563.47
Loan from related parties
Loan from holding company (Refer note (c) below) - 39,291.64
Cther borrowings 21,013.39 -
Total 74,045.20 63,984.46
Borrowings in India 74,045.20 63,984.45
Borrowings outside India - -
Total 74,045.20 ~ 63,984.46
Secured borrowings 74,045,230 24,692.82
Unsecured borrowings 38,291.64
Tatal 74,045.20 63,984.46




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN; UE5990MH2016PTC2 71587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

{a} Term loan from banks (TL):

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Redeemable within Rate of interest Rate of interest

>= 7.90% <= 8.85% | >=8.30% <= 9.10%

Amount Amount
Ahove G0 Manths 2,915.72 -
43-60 Months 2,104.57 124.17
36-48 Months 3,173.05 869.22
24-36 Months 4,879.456 1,324.53
12-24 Maonths 6,448.55 2,065.58
0-12 Months 5,187.27 1.741.85
Total 24,718.62 6,129.35
(k) Term loan from NHE [TL):
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Redeemable within Rate of interest Rate of interest

»=5,25% <= 6.65% | »= 5.25% <= §.10%

Amount Amount

Above 60 Months 82286 [ 301617
48-60 Manths 3,387.59 2,047,009
36-48 Months 3,590.28 2.894.89
24-36 Months | 444098 2,894.89
12-24 Months 4,440.93 2,89489
0-12 Months 4,428.51 4,815.54
Total 28,313.20 18,563.47

Foot Motes:
(1) Term loan from banks and financial institutions have been used for the purpose for which they were borrowed.
{Il) Quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with Banks or Financial Institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts,

{¢) Term loan from holding company :

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Redeemable within Rate of Interest Rate of interest
MA 10%
Amount Amaunt

Above 60 Months - =
48-60 Months - | 1800000
16-48 Months - | 2000000
24-36 Manths . -
12-24 Months # =
0-12 Months - | 129164
Total - 39,291.64
Mota :

The term loan from holding company includes a optionally convertible loan into equity share of the company of Rs. Nil as on 315t March 2022
{Previous year Rs 10,000.00 lakhs). IndoStar Capital Finance Limited has the right to convert whole or part of the outstanding of the said loan
amount into fully paid equity shares of the Company at a price which iz higher of (I} the fair market value of the equity shares of the company as
determined by an independent Category || Merchant Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India or by an independent
Chartered Accountant, as on a date not preceding 6 months fram the date an which the right to convert loan amount is exercised by IndoStar
Capital Finance Limited; or (i) face value of equity shares of the Company. The portion of the loan so converted shall cease to carry interest and the
putstanding loan amount shall stand correspondingly reduced. ==

_—
—d



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: UEe5990MH2Z016PTC271587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
[Currency ; Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Mote 16
Other financial liabilities
Book overdraft 152495 207.21
Employee bensfits payable 22729 86.69
Unamortised lease liabilities 282.56 113.07
Others 2,222.20 2,242.59
4,257.00 2,649.56
Mote 17
Provisions
Provicion for employee benefits:
Gratuity 56.52 41.65
- Compensated absences 21.58 13.61
Others :
- Expected credit loss on undrawn loan commitments 11.76 4,86
BO.BE 60.12
Mote 18
Mon-financial liabilities
Staturory dues payahle 134.22 E9.48
134.22 B89.48




IndoStar Home Finance Privabe Limibed

ClIN: UBSYS0MHMNIBFTCIT158T

MNotes to the financial statemeants for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : Indian Rupeess Lakhs)

MNate 19
Equity share capital

. Details of autherised, lssued and subscribed share capital

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Mumber Amount Number Amount
Authorised capital
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,00,00,00.000 1.00,0C0.00 20,00.00.000 20,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity sharas of Bs,10/- each fully paid up 45,00,00,000 45,000.00 20,00,00,000 20, 000,00
Tots A45,00,00,000 45, 000,00 20,00,00,000 20,000.00
. Reconcilistion of number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Wumber Amount Mumber Amount
Shares outstanding at the begmning of the year 20,00,00,000 20,000.00 20,00,00,000 20,000.00
Add: Issued during the year (fully paid Rs. 10 each) 25,00,00,000 25,000.00 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 45,00,00,000 45,000.00 20,00,00,000 20,000.00
. Particulars of shares held by holding Company
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Mame of sharchoider Relationship No of equity shares Mo of equity
held Percentaps shares held b
Indostar Capital Finance Limited Halding Company 45, 003, 00,000 100% 20,00,00,000 100%

Az per records of the Company, including its reglster of shereholders/members, the abowve shareholding represents legal ownerships of shares.

. Particulars of shareholders halding more than 5% of shares held

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Name of shareholder Relationship mo of equity shares No of equity
Percentage Percentage
held shares held
IndoStar Capital Fingnee Limited* Halding Company 45,00, 00,000 1005 20,00,00,000 100%

* 1 equity share each s held by six individuals jointly with IndoStar Capital Finance Limited, further beneficial interest of the same is with IndoStar Capital Finance Limied
A per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents legal cwnerships of shares.

. Termsfrights attached to equity shares
The Comparry has onby ome class of equeity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each halder of equity shares is entitled to proportienate vote on basic of his

contribmtion to fully paid wp share capital.

In the event of liquidaticn of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recetve rernaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. Tha distribution will be in proportien to the proportionate emount of contribution made by the equity shareholder to the total equity share capital,

Objective for managing capital

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and mantains
strong cradit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

. Shares held by premoters at the end of the year
Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares %% Change during the

year

As al 31 March 2022
Imdastar Capital Finance Limited a5,00,00,000 100% 0%

As at 31 March 2021
Indastar Capital Finance Limited 20,00,00,000 100% 0%




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: UBS990MH 2016PTC2T15EY

MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Note 20

Other equity

Statutory reserves ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 1,537.68 851.51

Capital contribution from Holding Company 245.51 211.91

Retained earnings 3,118.28 465.88
4,501.47 1,529.30

20.1 Other equity movement

Statutory reserves ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Opening Balance 851.51 292.48

Add : Transferred fraom surplus BE6.17 559.03

Closing Balance 1,537.68 851,51

Capital contribution from holding Company

Opening Balance 21191 126.95

Movement during the year 33.60 84.96

Closing Balance 245.51 211.91

Retained earmings

Opening Balance 465.88 {1,773.10)

Add: Transferred from the statement of profit and loss 3,430.83 2,795.13

Less: ‘Transfer to statutary reserve as per Section 29C of the (636.17) (559.03)

Less ; Share issue expenses (98.69) =

Add: Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations 6.43 2.88
3,118.28 465.88

Closing Balance
20,2 Mature and purpose of reserves

Statutory reserves ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Statutory reserves fund is required to be created by Housing Finance Company as per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank of India Act, 1987.
The Company is not allowed to use the reserve fund except with authorisation of National Housing Bank.

As per Section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (the “NHB Act”™), the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net profits every
year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose any Special Reserve created by the Company under Section 36(1){viii) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961, is considered to be an eligible transfer. Special reserve u/fs 29C of the NHB Act includes ameount transferred for Special

Raserve in tarms of Section 36{1)(viii} of the Income-tax Act, 1961,

Capital contribution from holding company

Capital contribution reserve represents the proportionate amount of fair value of options charged to the Company on account of issuance of

employes stock oplions to the employees of the Company by its Parent Company (i.e. Indostar Capital Finance Limited] on its own shares.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents surplus/{deficit) of accumulated earnings of the Company,



IndaStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: UB5990MH2016FTC271587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 21
Revenue from operations
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Interest on loans
Loan portfolio 13,524.97 10,721.33
Interest on deposits
- Deposits with banks 26.77 10.29
13,551.74 10,731.62
Fees and commission income
- Fees 592.41 23783
592.41 237.83
Net gain on fair value changes
Net gain/(lass) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments 92.89 52.09
Total fair value changes 92.89 92.09
Fair value changes:
- Realised 92 55 92.05
- Unrealised .24 0.04
Total fair value changes 92.89 92.08
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments measured at amaortised cost category
Assignment Income 223.96 2,156.28
223.96 2,156.28
Total 14,461.00 13,217.82
Mote 22
Other Income
Miscellaneous income 2,78 187.74
Interest on income tax refund 1852 1.19
21.30 188.93
Mote 23
Finance cost
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Interest expense on borrowings
Loans from banks 2,205.09 1,443.47
Other borrowings (including Inter Corporate Depaosits) 2,6R4.42 4,021.26
Interast expense on debt securities
Commercial paper 165.14
COther interest expense
Bank charges & other related costs 43.84 28.18
4,933.35 5,658.05
Mate 24
Impairment on financial instruments
Impairment on loans measured at amortised cost
Provision for expected credit loss 446,99 584,68
Financial assets written off (net of recovery) 126.14 -
Impairment on athers
Undrawn loan commitments \Y 6.90 4.86
Others 32.08 £5.56
612.11 8955.10




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIM: UBS990MH2016PTC271587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Mote 25
Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries, ather allowances and bonus 2,2BB.77 1,581.58
Gratuity expenses 2347 17.51
Compensated absences 11.56 (12.01)
Contribution to provident and other funds 93.81 71.28
Staff weifare expenses 19.35 7.00
Share based payment expense 33.80 84,96
Employee shared service costs 406.03 58.08
2,876.59 1,B08.40
Note 26
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (PPE) £1.43 123.29
Amortisation of intangible assels 75.12 7753
156.55 200.82
Note 27
Other Expenses
Rent 32.77 29.68
Rates & taxes 90.49 10.18
Printing and stationery 16.76 8.77
Travelling & conveyance 154,99 £8.01
Advertisement 7.15
Commussion & brokerage 36.21 057
Office expenses 191.80 116.04
Directors' fees & commission 0.82 -
Communication expenses 27.97 17.54
Payment 1o auditors (note below) 21,22 20.67
CSR expenses (note below) 19.41 B
Legal & professional charges 87.70 23053
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment 0.05 B.98
Other shared service costs 725.46 399.85
Provision on employee advance - 6.33
Impairment allowance on assets held for sale (117.79) -
1,295.01 917.15
Payment to auditor includes:
a) Statutory Audit {refer footnote) 12.00 10.71
b} Tax Audit 1.50 1.50
) Certifications 1.72 6.75
d) Other Services - 1.71
Total 21.22 20.G67
Footnote:
Including payment to erstwhile auditors current year 6.82 lakhs (previous year Rs. 2.21 lakhs.)
Details for expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility:
a) Gross amount reguired to be spent during the year 1941
b} Amount of expenditure incurred 15.41
c) Shortfall at the end of the year —
d} Total of previous years shortfall ™ MA
&) Reason for short fall : \ MA

f) Nature of C5R activities ; J
g} Detalls of related party transactions \ % 3 / 2

For Children Education & Women Empowerment



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limabed
CIN: UB5SSS0MH20LEPTC2TI5ET

Notes to the financial staterents for the yvear anded 31 March 2022

(Cwrrency @ Indian Rupees Lakhs]

Mot 28
Income taxes

Tax axpenie
{a) Amounts recagnised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 21 March 2021

Current tax eapense
Current year 1,325.00 AB0.50

1,325.00 3B0.50
Deferred tax axpense
Origanation and reversal of temporary differences {147.14] E91.60

{147.14) BELGD
Tan eapense for the year L iﬁﬁ 1,072.10
(b} Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

For thie year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021
Before lax T“J:m" 'jl se} Met of tax Before tax Tax [expense]) benefit Net of tax
Items that will not b reclassificd to profit or loss -
Hemeasuremants of the defined benefit liabality B.60 247 £.43 iR (0.19) 148
{anset]
B0 {2.17) 6.43 3.07 (019} 158
(c} Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Far the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2022 31 march 2021

Profit before tax = 4,606.69 3,867.23
STEMULONY MCOME T3k FaLe 15.17TH 25.17%
Expected ncome tan expense 1,155.92 973.30
Tax gffect of:
Ortheers items oot deductible 17,54 GE.ED
Total tax expanse 1,177.86 LO072.10
Current tax 1,375.00 380,50
Doterrad 1ax {14714} A91.60

1,177.86 1,072.50




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIM: LI65990MH201EPTC271587
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Mote 29
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS ralculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting profit impact of dilutive
potential equity shares, if any) by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and the
weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equily
shares,

For the Yesr For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i. Profit attributable to equity holders [A)

Profit attributable to equity helders for basic and diluted EPS (Rs. Lakh) 3,430.83 2,795.13
ii. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B) 38,69,86,301 20,00,00,000
iii. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS (C) 38,69,86,301 20,00,00,000
v, Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 0.89 1.40
v. Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 0.89 1.40

ah\\
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Indo5tar Home Finance Private Limiled

CIN: UBS920MH2016PTC2T 1587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
[Currency | Indian Rupesas Lakhs)

MNote 30
Financlal instruments - Fair values and Rish management

& Accounting classification and fair values

Fair value is the price that would be recetved to sell an asser ar paid to transfer 8 lizbility in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measuremant date
unger current market conditions | regardless of whiether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valustion technigue,

The management has ascessed that the carryng amounts of cash and cash equivalents, lpans carrled at amortised cost, other financlal assets, trade payabies, borrowings, bank/boak
gverdrafts and other current Babilties are a reasonable approximation o thei akr value.

8. Risk Management Framework:

Company's fisk management framewark |5 based on

{a] Clear understanding and identification of various risks

(b} Discplined risk assessment by evaluating the probabillty and Impact of each risk

(e} Measuremnent and mositarmg of nisks by establishing key risk indicators with thresholds for all critical risks and
{d} Adeguate review mechanism to monitor and contral rfisks.

Company's nisk management division works as a value centre by constantly engaging with the business providing reports based on key analysis and ingghts. The key reks faced by the
company are credi risk, nuidity nsk, interest rate risk, operational risk, frosd risk, reputational and regulatory risk, which are broadly classified as credin risk, market risk and operational
risk. The company has a well estabhshed rigk reporting and manitaring framework. The company identifies and monitors risks periodicalty. This process enables the company 10 reéassess
the all critical risks in o changing ervaronment that seed to be fecused on,

C Risk governance structurne,

Company's risk governance structure operates with a robust Board ssnd Ridk Management Committee ('RMC') with a chearly laid down cherer and roles and responsibifities. The Board
gversaes thi risk managerment process and moniors the risk profile of the company directly as well 35 through o Board condituted Risk Management Committee. The Committes reviews
the sk managemen palicy, mmplementation of risk management framewark, monitoring of critical risks, and review of variows other initistives, The nsk management adbcies are
established to identify and anabyse the risks faced by the Company, to sel appropriate Nmits and contrals and to monitar risks and adherence to limits. The RMD reviews the risk
management policies regularly vo reflect the changes in market conditions and Company™s activities.

The Audit Committer oversees how management monitors compliance with risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of risk management framewark in
relation to the nsk faced by the Company,

The risk management division has estabiished a comprehensive risk management framewark across the business and provides appropriste reports on visk exposures aed analyse i ils
pursuit of creating awargness across the Company ebout risk management

B, Fair value hierarchy

irid A% 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured ar fair value in the Balance Sheed. using 4 fhree tevel fair-
value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the mezsurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in acive markets far sentical
assets or labilities (Level 2 measurements) and [ewast priorty 1o un-observable Inputs Level 3 measurements). The thies levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under ind A5 107 are described
below,

Lewel 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments mzasured wsing, quoted prices.

Lewel 2: The fale walue of financial setruments that are not traded in an sctive miarket i determined using valuation techniques which maximise the ute of observatde market data and
place limited relance on entity specific estimates. If all significant ingats requared to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument Is included in level 3.

Level 3: If ane or more of the significant impols i< not baced on observable market dats, the instrument s inclyded inlevel 3

Thie following table showes the carrying amounts and fair velues of financial assets including thalr fevels in the fair value hierarchy:

As at 31 March 2022
Carrying amaunt Fair value
Fair valug Lewel 2 - Lewel 3 -
Partioulars Falr value Levell-
through other Significant Slgnificant =
thmu:l: profit o hensiye Amortised Cost Total ﬁl‘:‘m:‘ cbservable  unobservable b
and loss Cinia inputs mpiits
Inves £l
[a} Investrments £.300,12 ] 2.300.12 2,300.12 - - 2,300,312
[b) Loans & 1.21.587.18 121,557 18 - 12159018 12 1,59?-.1:§
Total 230012 1,21,597.18 3,23,097.30 1,300.12 s L!lem-ta 1,23,897.30
s at 31 March 2021
Carrylng amount Fair value
- 13-
Particulars Fair value mm' ool Lewel 1 - m;'l'r: = s'l':::.; =
& Total
thr:::l::rum i Amortised Cost Total l::;n:d;rl:;l: abercatie iambierakls
B incoma ' inputs inputs
Inwest d unde T
(&} Investments 500.02 - . 500.02 500.02 - - 506002
b} Laans - - §i,822.30 #3,82239 . - §3822.39 B3,522.39
Tatal 500,02 = £3,822.3% B4,322.41 . 500,02 = 83,822,379 B84,322.41

: \Mwmay
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E. Liguidity risk

Limsidity bs the Compary's cepacrty 1o fund incresse inoadsets and mesl bath the eagected and unexpected obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. Liguldity nisk is the inahility
Lo meet such obligatons as they become due without adversely affecting the company's Financial conditions. The Asset Laability Management Policy of the Company supulates a broad
framewank for Liquidity nsk management to ensure that the Company can meet s liguidity obligations. The Asset Liability Management Committee JALCON) monitors compodstion,
characteristics and drersification of funding sources o ensure there is no over reliance on single source of funding. The Company tracks the cash fiow mismatches for measuring and
mznaging net funding requirement through Maturity Ladder apgroach and reviews shor-term liquidity profiles based on business projections and other commitrments for planning
purposes through Dynamic Liguidity anatysis. The ALCO also reviews the individual mismatch in each time bucket and curmidative mismatch and ensures the buchet wise limits aré not
generally breached.

The Company mamtaing 4 portiotio aof highly marketable and diverse assets that are sssumed to be 2asily liguidated in the event of an unforeseen interruplion in cash Eow. The lgquadity
position of the company Is assessed under o variety of scenarios giving dus consideration o stress factors refating to both the market in general and risk specifics to the Company. Basis
the liquidity positian assessed under various strass scenanios, the Company reviews the fellowing to effectively handle any lquidity crise:

+ Adeguaty o contingency funding pian n terms of depth of various fundeng sources, thine to activate, cost of borrowang, etc
= Awailabilily of unencurmbered eligible assats

Maturity profile of undiscounted cash flows for financial liabilites as on balance sheet date have been provided balow:

A5 on 31 March H22

Partieuiars Less than 3 3to 12 months 1o 5 years Qwer 5 years Takal
menths

Fil I Liabillitie
Trade payaiies L199.70 118570
Borrowings [other than debt securities) LA70. 74 B.065.29 36,0436 2796477 74,045.20
Cthar finsncial abdines 3,585 70 1513 213.07 13,10 4,257.00
Tota! T.056.18 £.100.42 36,257.43 27,837.87  79,501.90
g on 31 March 1021

Particulars “;::': 3 itol2months 1toS years Oheer 5 years Tatal
Financial Liahilities
Trade pavabies 49590 . - . 495,90
Horrowings (other than dabf securties) 3878.78 3.570.32 53,1159.74 3,015.62 63,984,486
Crther Bnancial Babiitie 1,69.56 - - - 2,640.56

Total 7.074.24 3,970.32 53,1149.74 301562  67.129.92




InfeStar Home Finance Private Limited

CEN LBGSOSDMHI0LEPTCETLISET

Noles to the fnancal stalements for tho yoar ended 31 March 2022
{Currency ! Indian Rupees Lakhi)

HNote 33
Tisaneial instramenrs - Fair saloes and Risk managemaent (comtinued)

. Crodit righ

Credin risk arises when 2 barrower bs unable 1o meet his inancisl shigations (o the lender. The eflective managensent of credit ntk reguined 1he suabishmant of appropriate eredin risk policies and processes. The Company
Al compras and well definsd eradl palisies armss warious b amd which eradit approval process for 3l busineisss along with guidalings fes jpating tha risks fased
B v Thi apped sl process weciudes detailed risk mseiiment of the Mw:\_ ptysizal varifications and fiedd vishs. The company has a rebuil et sanction moniloning process to identify credit Wﬂm trends snd
eardy warning signals. This enables it to-imol necessary changes (o thi cradd policy, whendves the need arises ta pravent any furthar slipnaga in the eredlt uality.

Sagniticant increade in credit risk

The credit rak om a & | asswt af the Semp avw asfumdd to hiws increaied signifcantly tinoe initisl racagnitien wien costrastul paymants ane mane than 30 days past due. Addifionally, sccuenti identilied and
reviawdd by 188 Fastuthe sammittee for labelling as breaching pre-defined critical coed?l fak parsamben will 850 be clissified as Stage 2. Accordingdy, the finsncial susets shall ba classilind as Stage 2, based on the
g biative a5 well a3 gualitative factors

Write off policy
Financial assets are waittan off withar partiafly or in theis sntwely anly when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery, Any isaquant recorverizs ane credited to impaiiment on financal mstrumenl is datersat of
profit and lois.

Restructured finencial asseds

& loan whisre repaymant Tarms a6 renegntiated an substantially dferant terms as compared to U original centracted temms due to SEAMCnt credit risk of the barrower sre clasaified m Stage 2. Such loans continue o be

in stage T wntl they sxkibil regular payment of renegotisted principal and Inserest sver § minimum shwsation perind typically 12 months-post renegotistion, and thene ane no cler indicators of impairment. Mg
infrad the epmditians af timely payment over the chasrvation percd thase loans could be traniferned to stege 3 of 2 and & fresh sstessmant of tha dik of delault is done,

Oeerdiew of the Expected Credit Loss primiigles
Tha ermpany reeards aliowanee Tor avpreted eredit lasses for all kaany, debt financial ssuela pal beld ot FUTPL, legetber with undrawn loan commitments [refarred ee as 'Fannsial instrument’).

Stape 1: Al eeposuiel whiss Uheid hag nat Been @ significant incraass w cradi nik Since il recagniian or that s bmw eredit riok 2t the repariing date and that are ol credd impained upon ongeation sre clazsifisd
uesdar this srape. The Company classifies all ad b 30 dinns cvardum under this ctegory. Stage 1 19ans also include facilities whens the cresit itk has improved and the loan has been reclissiied fom Slage 1.

Stage T AW pxpodures whiss thare Ras Been & significant increnss in erasdit sk sines inhinl rezagnition but are not eredit impaired are cassdied under Uris stage. Exposuie ard classified a5 Stage 2 whan the amaaint iy dus
far mare than 30 davs bul do net exieed 30 davs,

"Slage 35 Al wApoRunis de assadied a5 redit IMDaIred when oos af Mare AvEn Chat mave & Artrimental impact on the estimated fotere canh Mows o that ssel have otoumed. Exposunes where the amount remies due far
G0 davs or mone are coscddered as i be stage J arieis

Thee cornparny Bk e lablishad @ policy Lo perfcnm an assessment, ot the and of saen repaeting peresd, af whethar a financial instrument's credil mk has irceaded dignifcantly snce initial recognition, candideting 1he change
in this risk of defauht cocuring over the remalning lite of e finarcial mstrument. The comoiny undertaked the clasiificstian of exposunes within the afaresald stages at barrower favel

trefinition of defaul

& defaii on 8 Snsncal BESET B owhan 1he caumterparey fails to make the contractusl paymanls within 30 days of whan ey fall dua, Acconfngly, the Einnncisl axsns shall e slassified 2« Stage 3, if on ihe reporting dale.
s bewn B0 diys obat dus. Further (F the customad has equested farbanranse in repayment term, such aed Fedulad ar etiabind accounts are also claksified &d Stage 3. Man-paymant an anather
nlig af ke same B alve cunaidered oo slage 3.

The caloulitson of ECL
The Comaany calculates BCL to measure the axpested cash shortiaf, didcounted at 30 approvimaticn 50 the £10. & sash shamtall b the difference between the cash fiews that are dus te a0 andity = accoroance with the

contract and thi saik fisart thit TRE SATEY EYRECTS 10 recah,
Thw hey laments of the ECL are summaridad balow

Erpaiung-Ar-Dafault (EAD) : The Faposure at Defaull ks the amount the Comeany B datithed to rective 35 00 repodting date including repay due for principal and imlevest, whather schedubid Ly contract or otherwise,
gt ad drawdawng on committed faciltisn

Probabity of Delauts {PO) - The Prokakiiny of Defaul Is an extimate of the likefihood of defeul of the expoiure over & given time harieon. A dedsailt may only happen at a certain time over the asisised cancd, @ the Bacility
has not been previously derscugniied mnd 1 il in the portfolo,

Lss Grvmn Delault (LSO The Loss Green Diafault i 5 estimats af the loss arksiap is the case where o default ocurs ot a ghoin time, It i based on the difference betwesn the cantractual cash flows due ang thate thas the
fender would expect to receive, ncheding o e realimation oF sy collatenl

This FCL shewanes & apphied on the & air Jepurding ugen the clisifcation of the financial Inyruments as par the credit risk imvolved. ECL allowance is somguted on the Eeici mentionsd basls

12emanth ECL 1 fomemth ECL [s the partian of Lifetime ECL that spadents v ECL Ehat fdsiuits from defau #vents an o fisaneal instrument that ane possivle within 1he 12 monthi aler the reporting date. Li-manth ECL s
BOCiWd On 1TAEe 1 3Lt

(iftima L Lifateme FOL1ar enedit losses expected to arise ouur the b of fhe a3 0 cases of Crpdit impaired baang and & casa of financial instruments where there has besn significant increass in credit rak sincd
anignation Litetime ECL i3 the sxpested cradit bass rasulting from sl possibhe default svants over the exgected lile o a financial istramant. Letms ECL i applied on stage 2 and stage § asiets.

The C v emputis the ECL te althar 5 indhidunl basis or an collective bass, depending un the pature of the underhing portfolio of finarcial intrumane,
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mpee 30
Finanial instrsments - Fair valises and Rtk managemant {contimued]
Forward loaking informarinm
Thi camainy emphoys tatistical models to analyse the dats sallacsad and ga of e remmaining feliree PD of eiposures and how tece bne sxpectad bo chango as 2 result of the pauage of time. Suh
| madels are sel 'y idering the avaiabiity of intormation related 1o the probusdiey of defais fer sach product. This snabrils includes the dentilication gnd celibration of relstionships betwsen changes
I SNP 35 promy for SeFRUR raTas and chaspes in key macro-economic lactors. Key wconame wndicators considened for fansard laoking imeludes:
= Q0P gronwith

* WM [Whalesale price indes)

Eor the purpant of detesmiation f impase of farward lnakdng mformation, the company apglies magee sconomic (ME) varisblas by 120ted absius 10 ach product and assess the trend af the huserical protabiy of defaults
a2 compared to the foretaubed probabilty of delault. Based on the dirsctonal trasd af aurpur, management agplies an overlay I reuined, Dvertine, new WE vanable may amange tn have & bener commelation and may
repluca ME Being usen now

The tasie helou shows the credit guality and e masimem exeesure (e credit risk based on the Campany's ineeenal credit rating system and yew-ewd stage classification. The smounts preseated are gross of
dmpalrmient allowancet.

31 March 2022
$age lage Stage Totsl
Financial assets meassred 3t amorlised coil
Lokng 11527430 607293 220801 1.23.577.54
Total 1,15,274.30 B,078.53 IE.I! m
"iumber of Gorrowerd kf 88 11 Mar JOX2 ars FOE
o 31 March 2021

Puitsulari
: Stage stage stage ot
Financiad assets measwred at amortised 2ol
Losna 058729 3,217.385 155091 A5, 355.78
Total A0,567.29 331788 1,550,591 B3355.75
as pnabyis of ehanges in the pross carrying and the curresponding ECL aowances in rel ta banng snd ad i3, as lolk

Pactiulics -y T020-21

i Stage 1 Seage 2 Stage 3 Tetal Stage 1 Srage I stage 3 Tatal
Grogs carrying amoust ppening balance: 058728 3,217.55 1550091 8535574 TH115.74 33145 £30.59 75, 25019
Plww misats originated of purchsded 5831718 18141 289.78 SE,7ET.84 ETIAT] 75.48 117,23 76,9271.33
Asuels derecopnised o repaid {axdliading wnte offs) e 19,030 50) (891683 (BLTET) (20.439.91) [165160.587] [T %1 i83.08} 116,356,711
Tramghers 16 Tage | 231103 [2.000.90) (228.13) i ELRH 13817} .
Traerifers 10 stage 2 6,685,100 TR12.58 [1.1a1.88) + {3,084.34} LFEER ] (an.s5} -
Tramseers 1o stage § {241.85) [24a3.81) 168506 - (a0 {1x328) S18.41 .
Asmaunts written et 13.84) 18 54) {113.76) | 126,341 ol = & N
Gruss Chryling amoant chosing Balance 1,15, 274,30 5,078,831 w 12357753 20,587.2% 3,217.55 155031 155,35
Aeranciiation of ECL bal s v Relow;
M21-23 200-21
Pasticulbr
seage 1 Stage d Staged Total seage | Seage 2 Stape 3 Total

LLL sllewlnce - spening balance 55331 BEY G 350.69 158035 51781 1.36 13541 EAB.6F
Hww aidels orginated or puschasea 4E063 | B il 54455 ivsTe 415,17 - 506
Assets demcognaied ar rapaid [ecluding write offs) [134.50) (4LE5) 1210.9%] [ELER B 14817) (0.651 [#.21 L5030}
Translars en seagpe 1 123.56 (E& 0] [%5.53] . o {0.09) - .
Transtirs bo sExge J (47,731 31401 | 266.28) . {13.67) 6.8 [E.15)
Traniters be ibage 3 {1.73] 15340} 114.13 - [&83) {1881 1051
Irmgais oo yacir aind ECL gl mprivat rusisner e [16t.50) 43147} 845,60 320 {z26.81) 14657 x7ae Large
Letirbn stages during Tha yeas
Ammunia witlen bagh {net of recoveny] LLA-E [0.24} (4236} {3282) . - -
FCl allawanee - closing balamce #aa.47 285749 BI04 m L9531 EE7.A8 130,69 H&ﬂ_

G, Rk Mznagement amidin COVI0-19 :

Estimation uneeitibly relatag B COMND-3Y global Beahh pasdemic:

I assiiding The ipooweratdity of lann, recerabias abd nvesuments. the Corpany b consifared itemal and eatarnal aoufeas af infarmacian, Bronmeic oewcantn amd indusley reginis wgho the date of apgeeval of these Bnaead resutts, The
iy i ol med itren teating o6 the assrrariens used and beved on curment indcalon of ke sosnome cosilion, the Company exsects 1o recover the cavying armiunt of thewe amsti The Company bay devtloped eilimalen s=d
apphed managamant meoclnyd for e perpets of af Uhe prowvaion for hnpainessnt of Bnaaciad siscks

Tha Bl sateet of impsct of the pandems (Wase 3 on the Coeogany's spdrations snd financial ped. {iesiug, 2 Tor finsncisl asset) wit depend on fuee developments inchling pavererseilal eod fagulaiony
i ot atd v Company's reiganues thenato, wisch aie hghly uncertain & this tiras

Fartier, i view of the matiars musitiogd b, The Compasy i regulaiy suseasing snd mosiaring the impect of the Howsl Goronbsseus (O0WI0-19) pandentic s i1s Byuidny and abBily 1s repey it obligations a4 and when thary oo dun, Bawed s
vha forsgoing and macesiany sire teih o g wanious B, m befbrer that h Company wil be sbie 1o oy it shigatians 41 and wien theve becera dye in the farsaveable fulure
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Nate 30
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

H. Market risk

Market Risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a finangial instrument a5 a result of changes in market variables such as interest
rates, exchange rates and other asset prices. The Company’s exposure to market risk is a functlon of asset liability management and interest rate
sensitivity assessment. The company is exposed 1o interest rate risk and liquidity risk, if the same is not managed properly. The company continuously
monitors these risks and manages them through appropriate rick limits. The Asset Liability Management Committee (‘ALCOY) reviews market related
trends and risks and adopts various strategies related to assets and liabilities, in line with the Company’s risk management framework.

I. Dperational risk

Operatianal risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from esternal events. The operational
risks of the Company are managed through comprehensive internal control systems and pracedures. Fallure of managing operational risk might lead to
legal / regulatory implications due to non-compliance and lead to financial lass due to contrel fallures. While it Is not practical to eliminate all the
pperational risk, the Company has put in place adequate contral framewark by way of segregation of duties, well defined process, staff training, maker
and checker process, authorisation and clear reporting structure. The effectiveness of control framework is assessed by internal audit on a periodic
hasis.

To manage fraud risk effectively, the Company has Independent Risk Containment Unit (RCU') which is responsible for implerenting fraud risk
management framewark and ensure compliance. The RCU undertakes vanous activities such as pre-sanction loan application verification, pre-sanction
and post dishursement documents verification, vender verification, ete to prevent and manage frauds.
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MNote 30
Financial instruments = Fair values and risk management (continued)

1. Capital Disclosure

The Company maintains adequate capital to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of our
regulator, National Housing Board{NHB). The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, amaong other measures, the
regulations issued by NHB.

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period.

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
shargholder value.

The Company maintains its capital structure in ling with economic conditions and tha risk characteristics of its activities.

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Tier | capital ratio 83.2% 48.0%
Tiar I capital ratio 0.0% 1.2%
Total capital adequacy ratio B83.2% 49.2%
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Mote 31
Related Party disclosures, as reguired by Indian Accounting Standard 24 {Ind AS 24) are given below:

a) Relatianships
Ultimate Controlling Party
Arookfiald Aszset Management Inc. (from 9 July 2020)

Holding Company
BCP W Multiple Haldings Pte. Ltd. (from 9 July 2020)
IndoStar Capital Finance Limited

Fellow Subsidiary
IndoStar Assat Advisory Private Limited

Names of other related parties with whom the Company had transactions during the year:
Key Managerial Personnel

Marayanan Madadur Rajagepalan - Mon-Executive Independent Director (from 2 Feb 2022}
Shreejit Menon -Whole Time Director and Deputy CEO

Munish Dayal - Mon-Executive Non-Independent Directer (from 14 Jun 2021)

Vibhor Kumar Talreja - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

Benaifer Palsetia - Non-Executive Non-independent Director

b} Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1) Shart-term employes benefits 114.28 74.17
2) Reimbursement of expenses 6.59 6.19
3) Directors sitting fees 0.82 .

Compensation of the Company’s key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post-employment
defined benefit plan.

¢} Transactions other than those with key management personnel :

Particulars _ Holding Company
1) Reimbursement of expenses 2032 1,139.78
2021 463.65
2] Interest on loan fram holding company 022 2,410.16
2021 4,021.26
3) Loan taken/(repaid) from halding company (net) 2022 (38,000.00)
(repayments includes coversion to equity) 021 13,000.00
4} Issue of equity shares 2022 25,000.00
2021 E

d] The related party balances outstanding at year end are as follows:

Parti Holding Compan i e
articulars E pany Personnel
1) Reimbursement of expenses 2022 1,196.36
2021 493.17
2) Loan from halding company 2022 . -
{including accrued interest) 2021 39,291.64 -
. Iﬁ
/)
S—,
W e |!|""'r'I ..-“'/
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Mote 32

Set out below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Type of Services or service
Fees 592.41 237.83
Total revenue from contracts with customers 592.41 237.83
Geographical markets
India 592 237.83
Qutside India =
Total revenue from contracts with customers 592 e 237.83
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 592 237.83
Services transterred over time -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 592 .. 23733
Note 33
Cantingent liabilities ana Commitments
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Capital commitments:
Estimared amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account = .
Loans sanctioned nor yer dishursed 6, 744.05 3.870.16
Note 34
Disclosures as required by Ind AS 116 ‘Leascs’
{A) Lease liability movement
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
(Opening Balance/Transition Adjustment 113.07 20 00
Add ; Additions during the year 196.26 116.57
Add : Interest an lease liability 19.32 4,66
Less * Lease rental payments (46.19) (28.26})
= 282.56 113.07
(B! Future lezse cashfiow for all lsased assets ——
Particulars s at 31 March 2622 As at 21 March 2021
St later than ona year 70.59 24.59
Later than one year but oot later than five years 262.65 96.43
Later than five years 23.09 33.64
356.25 15496
{C) Maturity analysis of lease liability —
Particulzrs As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 fdarch 2021
Lease liability
Lese than 12 moaths 46.3% 14.56
Maare thas 12 mantis £36.17 S -
282.56 o ta07
—
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Mote 35

Dues to Micro, 5mall and Medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 .

The following disclosure is made as per the requirement under The Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 {the '"MSMED
Act’) on the basis of confirmations sought from suppliers on registration with the specified authorities under MSMED :

Particulars As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021
a. Principal and interest amount remaining unpaid 0.05 0.32
h. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid ) <
c. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - &
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day

d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been - =
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest specified

under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act,2008)

e Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
f. Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeading years, until such date when the -

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

The aforementioned Is based on the responses received by the Company to its inguiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the
said Act, This has been relied upon by the auditors.
Mo interest has been paid/fis payable by the Company during the year to the suppliers registered under this Act.

Mote 36
Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:

The Company has an funded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible for a
gratuity on separation at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

Based on Ind A5 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, the following disclosures have been
made as required by the standard:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

A. Amount recognised in the balance shest

Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year 56.52 41,65
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year " z
Met asset [ [liability) to be recognized in the balance sheet 56.52 41.65

B. Change in projected benefit obligation

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Projected benefit of obligation at the beginning of the year 4165 2121
Current sarvice cost 20.83 15.85
Interest cost 2.64 1.86
Actuarial {gain} / loss on ahligation (8.60) {3.07)}
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 56,52 41.65

C. Bifurcation of Projected benefit Obligation

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Current Liability 1.22 0.08
MWan Current Liability 55.30 41.57
Total 56.52 41.65




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: UBS990MH2016PTC2 71587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency - Indian Rupees Lakhs)
D, Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return an plan assets

Actuarial gain/(loss)

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

E. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost
Met interest cost
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

F. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains) [ loss

- change in financial assumption

- change in demographic assumplion

- gxperience variation

Expenses recognised in ather comprehensive income

G. Assumptions used
Discount rate

Salary growth rate

Withdrawal rates

H. Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
20.83 15.65
2.64 1.86
23.47 17.51
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
(2.47) 2.16
{5.13) {5.23)
(8.60) (3.07)
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
6.95% 6.35%
6.00% 6.00%
10% at younger ages 10% at younger agas

ages

reducing to 6% at older reducing to 6% at older

BEES

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would
have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Particulars
o Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate |0.5% movement) 53.87 59.39 39.49 44.00
Salary growth rate [0.5% mavement) 59.24 £3.81 43.99 39.58
Withdrawal rate (10% movement) 56.17 56.85 41.03 42,27
I. Expected Future Cash Flows

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Particulars
¥ear 1 Cashflow 1.22 0.09
Year 2 Cashflow 4.05 0.87
Year 3 Cashilow 4.33 3.44
Year 4 Cashflow 4.50 in
Year 5 Cashflow 4.90 3.80
Year 6 to Year 10 Cashflow 23.76 17.46

1. Other information :
1. The expected contribution for the next year is Rs. NIL
2. The average outstanding term of the obligations as at valuation date is 10.03 years.

~— 5



IndoStar Heme Finance Privabe Limited

CIN: URSTO0MH M BPTC 2 71567

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency - Indian Bupees Lakhs)

Note 37 - Maturlty pattern of Assets and Liabifities

Fmancial statements of the Company are disclosed in the format or order of liquidity, An anakysis of its assets and llabilitles according to their timing of recoverability and

settlement has bieen presented below in a tabnelated format,

As on 31 March 2022 As on 31 March 2021
Parti
artioulars Note Within 12 More than 12 ok Within 12 More than 12 Tatal
manths months manthes manths
ASEETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 39187 - 351.87 565.29 565,29
Bank balances other than cash and cash 1,798.96 2752 207048 260.28 260,28
equivalents
Loans 5 4917.03 L16.680.15 1,21,557.18 10,340.95 73,481.44 B3,822.39
Inwestments B 230012 - 2,300.12 S00.02 - 50002
nhar financial assets 7 233436 233836 3711 264737 2.684.48
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) B 15896 258,96 - 123,50 2350
Froparty, plant and ¢quipment 13 - 33348 333.48 17177 17177
Intangible asets 12 - 207.95 207.95 - 10%.599 103.9%
Other non-financial assets 13 205.80 * 209.80 225.33 - 225.33
TOTAL ASSETS 9,617.78 1,20,090.42 1,22,708.20 1240647 76,628.07 ES.034.54
As on 31 March 2022 As on 31 March 2021
Particulars Note Within 12 More than 12 Total Within 12 Maore than 12 ki
msriths manths manths manths
LIABILITIES
Financial lisbilities
Trade payables 14 1,199.70 - 1,199.70 45550 = 495,90
Borrowings {other tham debt securites) 15 10,036.07 64,009.13 T4,045.20 T.849.10 56,135.356 63,984.46
Dither Anandial Rabidities 16 412083 13617 4, 257.00 2.551.05 83.51 264956
Non-financisl liabilities
Prowisions 17 B9.B6 B5.86 18.55 AL57 60,12
Defarred Tax Liabifiny ] HILTS B0.75 257 2572
{Other non-financal latalities 18 134,22 134.22 B398 - 89,48
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,350,482 64,415.91 79,806.73 11,004.08 56,501,156 67.505.24

Note 38 - Disclosure persuant to Ind AS 108 - "'Opérating Segments’
The Company operates mainhy in busieess segment of housing finance. Further, all activities are carried out in India. As such there are no reportable segments as per I AS

1048 "Operating Segments’.

Note 35

Thie disclosure on the following matters required under Schedule Il as amended not being relevant or applicable in case of the Company, sama are not covered:

a} The Company has not traded or invested in crygpio currency o virtual currency during the financial year,

It} Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Campany for holding any benami property under the Renami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of

1588) and mees made theocunder.

£} The Company has nod been declared wilful defautter by any bank or financial institution or government or any govennment authority.

dj The Campanry has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.

g} Charges or satisfaction to be registered with Registrar of Companies {ROC) have been registered within the stipufated statutory tmelines.

[} There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of sccount which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the Lax assessments

wvnider the Income Tax Act, 1961,



IndaStar Home Flnance Private Limited

CIN: UG5950MH201GPTC2T1587

Mates ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs}

Mote 40 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction = Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

As at 31 March As at 31 March
Particulars

2022 2021
I. Capital
{i) CRAR %} B3.2% 49, 2%
(i) CRAR = Tier | Capital {%) 83.2% a8.0%
(iH} CRAR — Tier Il Capital (%) 0.0% 1.2%
{iv} Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- I Capital -

{vh Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debe Instruments

Il. Reserve Fund ufs 29C of NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the beginning of the year

a} Statutory Reserve ufs 29C of the Mational Housing Bank Act, 1987 B5151 292,48
b) Amount of special reserve ufs 36[(1)(viii)af Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of
Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHEB Act, 1987

¢} Total 85151 292,48

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year

Audd:

a) Amount transferred w/s 29C of the NHE Act. 1987 686,17 559.03
b} amount of special reserve ufs 360 1)(wiil) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes aof - .
Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the MHB Act, 1987 (refer footnote below)

Less:

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHE Act, 1987 = E
b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve ufs 36(1){viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account which . -
fas been taken inta account for the purpase of pravislon ufs 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year

#) Statutory Reserve ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 1.537.68 851.51
bl Amount of special reserve w's 360 1)(vililof Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of . *
Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHD Act, 1987 (refer footnote below)

¢} Total 1,537.68 851.51

Faotnote :As per Section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 {the “NHEB Act”), the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net profits
every year Lo a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose any Special Reserve created by the Company under Section 36(1){viii) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961, is considered to be an eligible transfer. Special reserve ufs 29C of the NHB Act includes amount transferred for Special Reserve in
terms of Section 36(1){viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Il Investments
1. Value of Investments
(I} Gross value of Investments
far) 1oy Enchia 2,299.88 500.02
{b) Outside India . .
{ii} Provisions for DepreciationfAppreciation®
{a) In India 0.24
(b} Qutside India .
(i) Net value of Investments

{a) In India 2,300.12 50002
1) Outside ndia - -

2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation/appreciation on investments
(i) Opening balance 0.05 B
(i} Add: Provisions made during the year 0.24 0.05
(i) Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during the year (0.05) .
{iv) Closing balance 0.24 0.05

*Represents Unrealised gain due ta Fair value Change

IV. Derivatives
1. Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) S/ Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

(i} The notignal principal of swap agreements

(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the agreements -

(iii} Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps C =
{ivl Concentration of eredit risk arising from the swaps

(v} The fair value of the swap book £

N e’ f_/‘ [5
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: UE5930MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 80 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction = Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Housing Finance Company [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

2. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative

&5 at 31 March As at 31 March

Particulars 2022 2021
(i} Natienal principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year - -
{ii} Motional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31st March 2022 - -
{iii) Matianal principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and nol "highly effective” & -
{iv) Mark-te-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective” >

3. Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

F As at 31 March &s at 31 March

Particulars 2022 3021

A. Qualitative Disclosure

HFCs shall describe their risk management palicies pertaining to derivatives with particular reference to the
extent to which derlvatives are used, the associated risks and business purposes served, The discussion hall also
include:

a) thee structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading, 2
b} the scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting and risk monitoring systems, -
¢} policies for hedging and / or mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing

effectiveness of hedges / mitigants, and

d} accounting policy for recarding hedge and non-hedge transactions; recognition of income, premiums and
discounts; valuation of outstanding contracts; provisioning, collateral and credit risk mitigation.

Quantitative Disclosure
As on 31 March 2022 &s on 31 March 2021
Particulars Currency Interest Rata Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
{#) Derivatives {Motional Principal Amount)
{ii) Marked to Market Positions
[2) Assets (+) -
[b] Liability {-] £ .
{iii} Credit Exposure - -
{iv} Unhedged Exposures = =
V. Securitisation
1. Details of Securitisation pertaining to STC Transactions
As at 31 March As at 31 March
Particulars 2022 2021
1. No of 5PVs sponsored by the HFC for securitisation transactions 2 -
2, Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the 5PVs sponsored 11,013.39 -
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR 25 on the date of balance shast
{1} Off-balance sheet cuposures towards Credit Enhancements 1,720.00 .

{1} On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements =
Amount of exposures to securitisation trangactions
4. other than MRR
(1} Off-balance sheet exposures tawards Credit Enhancements
@) Exposure to own securitizations *
b} Exposure to third party securitisations -
(1) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
a) Exposure to awn securitizations .
b} Exposure to third parly securitisations
5. Sale Consideration recaived for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation*

a) Sale Consideration received 22,370.23
b} gain/floss on sale on account of securitisation 2

G. Form & quantum of Services Provided:
a) Collection Agent Fees ——= 1.30



IndaStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIM: LI6S950MH2016PTC27 1587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
[Currency : Indian Hupees Lakhs)

Mote 40 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

3 As at 31 March As at 31 March
Particulars 2022 2021
7. Performance of Facibty provided
I} Credit Enhancement
{a} Amount Paid 1,7%0.00
{b) Hepayment Receivad .
{c) Qutstanding Amount 1,7%0.00
0} Collection Agent feas
{a) Amount Paid 1.30 -
{b) Repayment Beceived 1.30
{c) Outstanding Amount -
& amount and number of additional/top up loan given on the same underlying asset -
9. Investor Compaints
{a} Directly/indirectly recoived -
{b)Complaints Outstanding s -
2. Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
; As at 31 March As at 31 March
Particulars 2022 3021
{i} Mo. of accounts -
{il} Aggrepate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold 1o 5Cf RC
{iil} Aggregate consideration - -
{iv] Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
v} Aggregate gain / loss over nel book value
3. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by Indostar Home Finance Private Limited
; As at 31 March As at 31 March
Particulars 2022 2031
(i} Mo. of accounts 1041 1,134
{li} Aggregate value [net of provisions) of sccounts assigned 6,364 .96 9,192.61
{iii} Aggregate consideration b,364.96 9,192.61
{iv] Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years -
(wh Ageregate gain f loss over net book value® "
{vi' Weighted average maturity (No. of Years)™" 12.22 A
{wi} Weighted merage holding period {months) 19.00 A
{wii) Retention of benaficial eeanomic interest 10.00% HA

* During the year, the company has booked gain on derecognised (assigned) loans of Re.1242.98 Lakhs on account of excess interest spread and servicing

ancets which does not frm part of aggregate consideration , conseguently aggregate gain over net book value is NIL

** Based on scheduled maturity of the pool contracts; may change an account of prepayment and yield change. The weighted average life: of the pool afier

taking into account prepayments is expected to be much lower

4. Detalls of non-performing financial assets purchased [ sald

As at 31 March

Particulars 2022

Az ar 31 March
2021

A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
{a) Number of accaunts purchased during the year
(b} Ageregate autstanding

{a) OF these, rumber of accounts restructured during the year
{b) Aggregate outstanding

B. Details of Non-performing Financial Assets sold:
. Mo of accownts sold

. Agpregate cutstanding =
3. Appregate considaration received

1
Z
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IndaStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: Us5990MHZ01EPTCIT158Y

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency * Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Vil. Exposure
1. Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category As gt 31 March  As at 31 March
2022 2021

a} irect Exposure

{i} Residential Mortgages - Lending fully secured by martgages on residential property that is ar will

be occupled by the berrower or that is rented. Individual housing leans up to 15 lzkhs Rs. 84,567.68 1,23,469.43 §5,198.54
lakhs. [Previous year Rs.54,535.35 lakhs)

(i} Commercial Real Estate - Landing secured by mortgeges on commercial real estates {office

buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial pramises, multi-family residential bulldings, multi-

Lengnted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development 108.05 157.21
and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based [NEB) limits;

{iii} investments In Mortgage Backed Securities [MB5) and other securitised exposures -
a) Residential 4 s
b} Commercial Real Estate =

b} indirect Exposure Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank [NHE) and

Howsing Finance Cormpanices {HFCs)
Total 1,23,577.53 85,355.75

2. Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars As at 31 March  As at 31 March
2022 2021

{1} direct investment In eguity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-
ariented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

{ii} advances agamst shares / boands / debentures or other securities ar on clean basis 1o individuals

for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and

units of eguity-oriented mutual funds; - =
{lii} advances for any gther purposes where shares or convertible bands ar convertible debentures or

units of equity criented mutual funds are taken as primary securty;

{ivh advances for any other purposes Lo the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or

convertible bonds or copvertible debentures or units of aquity oriented mutual funds i.e, where the

primary security other than shares / convertible bonds [ convertibie debentures f units of equity

ariented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

(v} secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guaranlees issucd on behalf of

stockbrokers and market makears; - -
[wi) lpans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or ather

securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the aguity of new companies in

anticipation of raising resources; . -
(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows [ issues; -

[wiit] Al exposures to Veature Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market = e

3. Details of financing of parent Company products: None

4. Details of Single Borrower Limit [5GL) / Group Borrower Limit [GBL) exceeded by the HFC:
The Camparny has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit [SBL) / Group Borrower Lirmit (GBL) during the financials year/periad.

5. Unsecured Advances : Nong

£. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business

Description Amount % to Net Owned
Funds

i) Exposure to any singhe entity in a group engaged in real estate business

{ii} Exposure to all entities in 3 group engaged in real estate business - -

Vi, Miscellaneous

1. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators | None
2. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and ather regulators : Current year - Nil {Previous year - Rs, 25,000 plus indirect taxes).

3. Related Party Transactions : Refer Note 31 N ( ﬁ’



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: LERSS0MH2O16PTC27 1587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

a, Group structure:

Brookfleld Asset Management Inc.
{Uitimate Controlling Farty)

BCP W Multiple Holdings Pre. Ltd. ' Indostar Capital
(Promaoter & Holding Company) [ {Pramater)

IndoStar Capital Finance Limited

(Holding Company]

IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited IndoStar Asset Advisory Private Limited
{Whally owned subsidiary) {Wholly owned subsidiary)

5. Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year:

Instrument Credit Rating Agency As at 31 March  As at 31 March
2022 2021
Commercial Paper CARE Al+ Als
ICRA Al+ Al
CRISIL Als Al+
Term Loans/NCD's CRISIL Adve AA-
India Ratings and Rescarch Private Limited Ad-
5, Remuneration of Directors [non executive) : Refer Note 31{b)
I¥. Additional Disclosures
1. Provisions and Contingencles
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the bead Expenditure in Statement of As at 31 March  As at 31 March
Profit and Loss 2022 021
1. Provisions for depreciation on Investrment = -
2. Pravision made towards Income tax 1,325.00 380.50
4, Provision towards NEA 4p9.45 221.18
4. Provision for Standard Assets lincluding provision on Teaser Loan Rs. NIL, CRE-RH for Rs. NIL & CRE
for Rs.NIL (Previows Year Teaser Loan As, NIL, CRE-HH for Re. NIL & CRE for Rs. NIL) (2240 Gh3;o
5. Other Provisicn and Contingencies 38.95 70.42
Housing Non-Housing
Break up of Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon Asat31March  Asat 31 March  Asat31 March  As at 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
Standard Assets
3] Total Qutstanding Amount 99,112.6% 72.578.22 22,280.53 11,226.63
b} Provisions made 932,58 1,092.14 22763 90,54
Sub-Standard Asgets
a) Total Quitstanding Amount 101792 CB4.6E 28571 22778
b) Pravisions made 2234 106.24 61.12 48.82
Doubtful Assets = Categary-I
a) Total Qutstanding Amount 351.07 53831 143.79 5a.27
b} Provisions made 79.46 160.61 31.40 16.56
Doubtful Assets — Category-il
a) Tatal Qutstanding Amount 326.01 42,41 57.89
by} Provisions made 326.01 15.01 57.80 -
Doubtful Assets - Category-1ll
a) Total Qutstanding Amount 18,59 - 0.30
b} Provitions made 38.59 . 0.30 -
Loass Assets
a) Total Qutstanding Amount = - 3.03 1.45
b} Provisions made + - 3.03 345
TOTAL
a) Total Gutstanding Amount 1,00,846.28 73,B43.62 22,731.25 11,512.13
b} Provisions made 1,598,598 1,374.00 ——. 3B1.37 159.37

2. Draw Down from Reserves : None



indaStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN; UB5590MH2016PTC2T1587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

3. Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Particulars Asat 31 March  As at 31 March

2022 2021

3a. Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Depaosit taking/holding HFCs)

Total Depesits of twenty largest depositors -

Percentage of Deposits of twanty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the HFC

3b. Concentration of Loans & Advances

Tatal Laans & Advances to twenty largest barrowers 1.662.38 227735

Fercentage of Loans & Advances to twenty langest norrowers 1o Total Advances of the HFC 135% 2.67%

3. Cencentration of all Exposure (Including off-balance sheet exposure)

Totai Exposure to bwenty largest barrawers / customers 1,822.84 2,200.486

Percentage of Exposures o twenty largest borrowers [ customers ta Total Exposure of the HFC on 1.40% 2.68%

borrowers [ customers

3d. Concentration of NPAs

Tetal Exposure to top ten NPA scoounts 453.74 530,08

e, Sector-wise NPAS

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector

A, Housing Loans:

1. Individuals 1.73% 1.71%

2. BullzersfPropect Loans -

3. Corporates .

4. Others -

B. Non-Housing Loans:

1. imdivaduals 2.16% 2.45%

2. Buildprs/Projpect Loans .

3. Corporates ]

4. Others -

4. Movemnent of NPAs

_P'arﬂ:ulars As at 31 March  As at 31 March
- 2022 2021

1) Net NPAS to Met Advances [%) 1.14% 1.41%

(1) Movement of NPAs [Gross)

a) Opening balance 1,550.91 633.99

b Additions during the year 2,974.64 1.040.54

¢) Reductions during the year {2,301.24} (123.62)

d} Clasing balance 2,224.31 1,550,91

{1} Movement of Net NPAs

a) Opening balance 1,200.22 50447

b} Additions during the year 1,940.17 B02.08

=} Reductions during the year [1,736.22} {106, 29)

d} Clasing balance 1.404.17 1200022

(V) Movemnent of prowisions far NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

a) Opening balance 350.50 129.51

b} Prowvisions made during the year 1.034.47 233.50

¢} Write-aff hwrite-back of excess provisions {565.02) (27.23)

d) Closing balance Ba014 350,68

5. Ovarseas Assets : None

6. Off-batance Sheet 5PVs sponsored [which are sequired to be consolidated as per accounting Morms) : None

X, Customers Complaints

. Particulars 4z at 31 March  Asat 31 March
2022 2071

a) Mo, of comglaints pending at the beginning of the year 13 &

b) Me. of compdaints recesved during the year — 155 14€

¢} No. of complaints redressed during the year 166 39

d} Mo. of complaints pending 81 the eno of the year \ 3 13

e



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: Ue5990MHZOLIEPTCZY 1587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency - Indian Hupees Lakhs)

Mote 41 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction = Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company

{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

Liabilities side :

(1) Loans and advances availed by the HFC
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not pald:

Amount outstanding Amount overdue

{a) Debenture : Secured
: Unsecured
(b} Deferred Credits
{c) Term Loans
{d) Inter-corporate leans and borrowing
(e} Commercial Saper
{f} Public Deposits (Refer Mote 1 below)
{g] Other Loans

53,031.81

21,013.39 .

(23 Brzak-up of {1){f) abowe [Outstanding
public deposits inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not pﬂ!j_

Amount outstanding Amount overdue

{a) In the form of Unsecured debentures

(b} In the form of partly secured debentures Le. debentures
where there is a shortfall in the value or security
&) Othar puklic deposits

Assets side :

(3} Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
{other than those included in (4) below ):

Amaunt outstanding

{2) Secured
(b} Unsecurad

1,23,577.53

(4) Break up of Leased Assets znd stock on hire
counting towards AFC activities

Amount outstanding

11} Lease aszets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
|a] Financial 'ease
i) Opevating lease

fi) 3tock on Rire inciuding hire charges under sundrv debtors
{al Assers on hire
ity Repossessed Ascets

{iit) Dthes leans counting tawards AFC Activities
{a} Loans where assets have baen repossessed
Ib) Lozns ather thar (a) above

5 Break-up of Investments :

Amount vutstonding

Current Invastments :
1. Cuoted
{1} Shares « {4) Equity

(h) Freferance
(i) Cebentura and Gonds
fiii} Linits of mutual funds
(i} Gavernment Sacurities
(vl Dtners (Flease specifv)

2. Uniquoved :
{1} Shares: (a) Eguily

fb) P-eference
(it} Debepiures and Bonds
(i) Unirs of mutuai funds

4,300.12




Indo5tar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: UBS990MH2016PTC271587

Motes

to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency * Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 41 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

(6}

7

(8)

Break-up of Investments :

Amount outstanding

{iv] Government Secuntics
{v) Others (Flease specify)

Long Term investments :
1. Quoted :
{1} Shares : {a) Equity

(b} Preference
(it} Debentures and Bonds
fiii) Units of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities
{v) Others (Please specify)

Amount outstanding

2. Unguoted :
{1} Shares: {a) Equity
{b) Freference
{ii} Debenturas and Bonds
(iii} Units of mutual funds
(i) Government Securities
{v} Others: Pass through certificates

Borrower group-wise classification of assets, financed as in (3} and (4) above ;

Category Amount | Net of provisions )
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties **
{a) Subsidiaries z . 3
{b} Companies in the same group -
{ &) Other related parties - - -
2. (nher than related parties 1,23,577.53 - 1,23,577.53

Investar group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term)
in shares and securities {both quoted and unquoted):

Market Value [ Break
up or fair value or
NAv?

Category

Book Value

(Met of Provisions)

1. Aelated Parties **
{a} Subsidiaries =
(b] Companies in thie same group .
{ ¢} Other related parties =
2. Other than related parties 2,300.12

Other Infarmation

Particulars Amaunt

(1} Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties™* .
{b) Other than related parties 222431
{ii} Met Non-Performing Assers
{a) Related parties™™ -
{b) Other than related parties 140417
(i) Assets acguired in satisfaction of debt -

2,300.12



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: UB5990MH EDIE?TC 271587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
[Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 41 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

9} Principal business criteria:
The Company is in compliance with the requirement of Principal Business Criteria In terms of Para 4.1.17 of Master Direction =
Morn-Banking Financial Company = Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

Paericulars % Limit
Criteria-l — e e o
Financial Assets / Total Assets (net of Intangible Assets) | 97.53% | =50%
Income from Financlal Assets / Gross Income . _ 59.67% = 50%
Criteria-ll - ] P
Hm;sing','l':ina nce [ Total Assets (net of intangible Assets) e TE.04% zE0%
Housing Finance for Individual / Total Assets (net of Intangible T8.04% & 50%

Assets)

Footnote: Cash/Bank Balance and Investments in fined deposits is not classified as "financial assets” and Interest income on fixed
deposits is not classified as “income from financial assets” in terms of Master Direction.

{10} Disclosure on liquidity risk management framework:
(i} Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty {both deposits and barrewing)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022
Mumber of significant counter parties 10
Amount 53,031.81
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits N,
Percentage of funding concentration Lo total habiities excluding netwarth BB.45%
(i} Top 20 large deposits
Particulars Az at March 31, 2022
Total amount of top 20 depasits MA
Percentage of amount of top 20 deposits to total deposits A
(iii} Top 10 borrowings
Particulars Az at March 31, 2022
Total Amount 53,031.81
% of Tolal Borrowings 100%
{iv} Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
Particulars As ot March 31, 2022  %age of total liability
(excluding Networth)
Term loans from banks 14,718.61 20.97%
Term loans from NHB 28,313.20 35.48%
{v] Stock ratic
Particulars Ay at March 31, 2022
Commercial paper 3% a percentage of total public funds MA
Commercial paper as a percentage of total liabilities MA
Commercial paper as a percentage of total assets MA
Mon convertible debentures (original maturity of less than ane
year) as a pereentage of total public funds A
Man convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one
year) as a percentage of total liabilities MA
Mon convertible debentures (original maturity of less than ane
year) a5 a percentage of total assets WA
Cither short term liabilities as a percentage of total pubhc funds 10.10%
Other short term habilities as a percentage of total labilities 6.71%
Cther shert term liabilities 85 8 percentage of Lotal assets 4.13%
{wi} Institurional set-up for liguidity risk Management Refer Mote 30

Eootnate: Borrawing and Public Funds excludes associated labilities in respect of securitised asset that has not
been derecognised due to nen fulfillment of derecognition criteria as per IndAS.

{11)  Percentage of cutstanding loans against collateral of gold jewellery Wil

(12)  Fraud reported during the year - Nil {previous year Nil] o ——
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: UE5930MHZ016PTC2T1587

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Mote 43 - DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA CIRCULAR NO. RBIf2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.
WOL105/22.10, 106/ 2019-20:

Asset Classification as per RBI Naorms Asset classification  Gross Carrying  Loss Allowances Mot Carrying Provisions Differance
as perind AS 109 Amount as perind  (Provisions) as Amount required as per  between Ind AS
A% reguired under IRACP narms 109 provisions
Ind AS 109 and IRACP
Marms
i) (2} 3 14} {5} = (3} - {4) i) {7} =(4) - (61
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 1.15,274.30 854 .42 1.14,370.88 31B.33 576.09
Stpge 2 6,078.93 b5, 74 5,6813.14 174.05 51,74
Subtotal 1,11,353.23 1,160.21 1,20,153.02 492.38 Bhi.83
Non-Performing Assers [NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,303.63 28346 102017 195.55 B87.91
Daoubtful - up to L vear Stoge 3 494,86 110.86 384.00 12371 (12.55)
1to 3 years Stage 3 383,90 3E3.90 . 153.56 230.34
More than 3 years Stage 3 3E.89 38,89 . 38.80
Subtotal for doubtful 917,65 533.65 A84.00 316.16 217.49
Loss Stage 3 3.03 3.03 103 -
Subitotal for NPA 222431 E20,19 1,404.17 514.74 305,40
Total _1.23.577.54 1,980,35 1,21,597.19 1,007.12 973.23
Other  ftems such as guarantees,  foan Stage 1 = 11.76 {11.76) . 1176
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of ind Stage 2 # N . *
A5 108 but not covered under current Income Stage 3 -
Recogrition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Subtotal - 11.76 [11.78) > 11.76
Stage 1 1,15,274.30 906.18 1,14,368.12 1833 SHI.BS
Tatal Stage 1 6,078.93 265.79 5,H11.14 174,05 91.74
Stage 3 2.220.31 §20.14 140417 514,74 5.0
Total l,!,!él".l'.snl 1,9582.11 1,&1,585.43 L007.12 584.95

Nate 44 - The Company does not have any unhedged forcign currency exposude fior the year ended 31 March 2022,

Mote 45 - The comparative financial infermatien for the previus year prepared in apcordance with vd AS included have been audited by the predecessor auditors.
The repart of the predecessor auditor expressed an unmodified opnian.

Mote 48 - Figures lor the previous years have been regrouped and / or reclassified wherever considered necessary b conform Lo current year presentation.

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors of

Indnsuiz:me Fimance Private Limited
A ™ .IrJI /_?
259 A

n
Deputy CEQ Non-Executive Director
[P OBOES220 Dan: QB7ES297

Nidhi Sadani

Company Secretary
Flace: Mumbai ;

Date: 16 May 2022




